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IN THE CIRCUIT COURT, POURTEENTH
JUDICIAL CIHCUIT OF THE STATE OF
FLORIDA, IN AND FOH BAY COUNTY.
STATE OF FLOHIDA,
PLAINTIFF,
vy
CLARENCE EARL GIUEON,
DEFENDART .
pE IT REMEMBEHED That this case came on for trial in the
Hegular Fall Term of Circuit Couri im and for Bay County, Floy-
ida, on the bik day of August, 1963, before the Honorable Hobert
L. MeCrary, Jr., one of the Judges of the sbove siyled Court,

presiding, and a Jury drawn from the Regular Venire.

APPEARANCES

FOK THE PLAINTIFF, State of Florida,

J. Prank Adams, EBsquire

State Attorney in and for the

Fourteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida
and

Williaz E. Harris, Esquire

Assistant State Attorney in and for the

Fourteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida

and

J. Paul Griffith, Esquire

Assistant State Attorney in and for the

Fourteenth Judicial Circuit of Florida.

FOR THE DEPENDANT, Clarence Earl Gideon,

%, Fred Turner, Esquire
800 Floridae Avenue
Lynn Haven, Florida



A& Jury was celled, examined, accepted, sworn and seated.

The witnesses were called,

[N

ionished by the Court, an
put under the ruls.

Mr, Herris, Assistant State Attorney, read the Informa-
tion on file in %éi%ka&g% to the Jury and told them what he
expected the evidence on behalf of the State to show,

My, Turner, Counsel for the Defendant, announced he would
walve an opening sitatement to the Jury.

Thereupon, the State's first witnese was called.

Henry Coolk, czlled as a witness on behalf of the 3tate,
peing first duly sworn by the Clerk of this Uouri, Honovable
Bruce Collins, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MH. HARRIS:

'y

Will you state your name foi the record, please.

A. Henry Cook.

Q. Where do vou presently live, Mr. Cook?

A. 108 Southeast Avenue.

¢. That is in Panawma City, Bay County, FPlorida?

A, Yes, sir.

. How old are you, Mr. Cook?

A. Tweniy-iLwo,

¢. M¥r. Cook, do you know Clarence Earl Gideon, seated

pext to Mr. Purner, at the Counsel Table?
A. Yes, sir,
§. Did you know Clarenmce Barl Gideon on June 3, 1961%
A, Yes, sir.
-Z



Koow is, kY.

A, Yes, slr.

. Did vou see Clarence Bari Gidecn there, in thau area
or vicinity, on thetv day, the 3rd day ol June, 19617

A, Yes, siv.

¢. What time did you see him

A

fetween five and five-thirty,

@t day’
in the morning.

(. Whnere did you see Mr. Gideon, when you first saw him?

A, He was inside

¢. Now, when you say
Pool Room are you referring to?
A. The Bay Harbor Foocl Hoom.
¢. How is it, Myx. Cook,

in the Fool Hoon¥

[
el
s

A, Well, I savw soneons

‘he was inslde

that vou happemt to see Mr. i

they

o

the Fool Eoom.

the Pool Hoom,' which

[N
i
[
&
e

I just stepped up to

ot

and

the window where I could see betier,

did vou come to notice

just wallked by there and

&
A, 1
g you looked in the

W
b
it
.

what was he doing?

A. He was standing up

¢. Could vou tell whatl Le Was

someone wasg in there?

looked in the window.

#
g
-
i

window gaw

the Bay Harbor Pool Roon

by the Cigsrette Machine.

doing¥



Y. Will you describe the Cigaretie

when you saw 167

A. I didn't pay wuch attention

gaw nim,

. Dlg yvou noitice anyviking

Machine®

J. It was open?

g
A, Yes, sir.

31

A, Well, 8ll the bpags and

oo

fselung the Cigareiie Machine.

anusus.

, the face was

tatuff!

to 1t at fivad

Yau mean vae

dschine's condliion

Yoy

i

Juszt

abpout the Clgarettie

§. Did vou see anyihing eise of that nature in

¢. You say ithe bags were laving on the table?

=

b
&

¢ table,

A. The Monev Bags that come oui of the Cigsrette Machine.

%. Now, how do you know they came out of

Machine?

4., ¥Well, 1 presume they did,

§. You just presume they came oul

. Yes, sir.

(“W
b
&
L]
fots
oy
Qﬁ
e

A
¢. Wow, tell me justi whal you sav on the ilable.
A

. There was some rags#, &oume bags,

—de

and......

the Cigareite

Maehine?



¢. Arve you saying 'wags,' or 'bags'®

4, Both - there was some rags and some bags and soue

¢. Dic¢ you see any money theve?
A, Ho, sir,
§. Did you see anything in Mr. Gideon's
4. No, sir,

§. What did vou do, after looking in the window and

secing Clarence barl Gideon there?

festo
i}

e
I

A, I walked on up Lo the cormey - up to the corney of the

girest.
4, How far is the cormsy of the sireet vou walked to

the Bay Harbor Fool Hoom?

A. 1 don't know exactly, about fifty oy sixty feet - maybe

§. What did vou do when you got up te the corner, Mr,

A, I walked pack down there.

§. You walked back to the Fool Hoom¥

A. Yes, siv,

N

§. And dig

&

walked back to the Fool Hoouw¥

A. Yes, sir, he was coming ou? the back door.

.

£

. Where did he go from there?
Down to the oorner of Henderson's Groecery Store.
. Down where?

Henderson's Groesry Store, on the corner.

you see Clarence B 1 Gideon again after you



G.
A,
k

:

m‘fs

<.

A

£

Bid you see what he did

ik
et
Fusg
b
fe]
g
@
e

What did he do%
He made & '"Phone ecall.

Go ahead and tell the Jury what happened frowm there on.

He made a 'FPhone call and a Taxicab come uy and picked

him up end he left,

G.
g¢id you
A,
kind on
A,
what 1%

Now, when you saw Mr. Gideon come out of the rool Boon
gee anyihing in his hands?

He had a pint of Wine.

Could you tell if he had any other merchandlse of any
nim?

He had something in his pocket - 1 dide'l know just
was in his pocket.

Did you see any other person, Cr persons, in that

area during that time?

A.

Only & ledy that was sittimg up on the cormer up there

gt & rooming houss.

'R
A,
§.
&,
rooning
Q.
A,
Q.

AL

Do you know her name?

Yes, sir - Irens Hhodes.

You say she was sitiing on the corner’y

The corner, where she lives &t - gshe lives atl that
house on the corner up there.

Was she sitting on the porch, on the street, or where?
On the porch.

is that the only other

%vx?

person you saw there?

Yes, sivr.

P -



A, I didn's understand you, slr.

¢. That's the only othe:r person vou saw therve besi

2

. Did you say anything to My, Gideon when you saw hin

A. Ko, sir.
¢. Did he say anyching to you¥

A, Ho, silr.,

¢. After Wy, Gidecon got in the Cab whai did you do¥

iA. I went back up there to the corper, where

was .

fhodes

¢. You testified, Mr. Cook, that you saw Ularence Earl

Gideon come out of the Pool Hall through the back door?

when

Cone

ing?

A, Yes, siv.
(. Now, just where were you standing , where were you
you saw ithat?

A. I was standing by the side of the building when he

out,

¢. Could you see the back door from where you were gtand~

A, Yes,sir.
(. Op which side of the building were you standingh

A. I was standing on the side facing the bar, the vighs

hand side.

¢. As you face the Har, you were on the rvight-hand side



£

of the building?

A, Yes,

§. Will vow describe what is nexi to the Bay Har

koom building, on that side?

A. The Bay Hsrbor Bar is right mexi to the Fool

. HBight back of 1it.

A
(. Is there an open area hetween the rocl Koom and the Bar

¢. You stated yvou saw Mr, Gideon coming out of an alley®

£
4

A. Just & dirt street there - mo, noct petween iLhe rool Hoom

end the Bar there's not, it's just s litile opening.

¢. Well, on this side of the building, where you

standing when you saw My, UGldeon come oul the back door

much open area is in there?

A. Avout fifteen feel.

. And how close to the back of the bullding wey

vou saw him ¥

or, how

¢ you when

A. I was the whole length of the building, it musi be

sbout forty foot long.

G. Allright, how clese to the back were you when vou B&W

him come out the door?

A. Well, I was on one end of it and he was on the other end.

3

;. Where is this door that you referred to¥

- ¢of the buliding, n

¥

4. The door opense on the back

<

i

g
A. It's on the baeck - right on the back,.
Y

A, Right,

0% on bthe

¢. In relation to the center of the puilding, in the back,



ghere is the door?

L. EBight on the right-hand s

o I
ge of i1,

e

¢. On the same gide that you were on%

A, "h-hu.”

¢, Now, will you tell the Jury, Mr. Cook, il the door
opens out the back of the building, and you were on the side
of the bullding, how did vou happen to see¢ him go out the doov.
0i¢ you actually see him come out the doory

A. Well, I looked through the window and I could ses the

door was ovpen, and when I walked to the side he

e}
&
&
Mu
joud
&
o]
i

coping arcund the eorner.

el

§. Then, from the side of the building you could see this
door you were referving to?

A. No, not from the side I couldn't - I seen 1t open when
1 looked through the window, and I walked arcund to the gide
and he come avound the side.

(. How long did vou watch the Defendant while he was in

the building¥

o
O
"
foned
7
o
o
2
th

A, Abour a minute
¢. How long?
A. About a minute - maybe more.

¢. During the time you saw him in there he was jusi stand-

A, Yesg, air.
¢. You didn't see hin 1o anyi he was just standing
there?

A, Not that 1 recall.



¢. How d4id vou happen ¢ be there in that ares st Lhat
time of the morming, MHr. Cook?

4. I had stayed cut all might - I had just come from
Apalachicole, with some more boys, we went 10 & dance down there.

¢. You stated, Mr., Cook, that you had known Ciarence Rarl
Gideon some sixy months prior to this date of Jume 3, 19617

A. About ithav.

(. ¥hat was your acqguaintence with himY

A, I jusi kmew him, that's about all.

¢. At the time vou saw Mr, Gideon in the Fool Hall was it
dark, daylight, breaking day, or what?

A. It was kinder dark.

(. Were there any lights on ingide the FPool Haell?

A. Ho, sir.

{j, Were there any street lighis around this Telephone Booth
that you referred to¥

A. It was pretty light outside - it was winder dark inside
the building, but it was pretty light outside.

§. You had no difficulty recognizing Mr. Gideon?

A, Ko, sir.

(. Where is the Bay Harbor Pool Room loeated, Mr. Cook?

A. On that road going imto the ‘Paper Mill,' I believe
it's Bversii Avenuse.

¢. Ie that & seciion of Panama City called Hay Harbor,
Florida®

A. Yes, sir.

¢. Is thet in Bay Couniy, Florida®

©

~10-



¢. You sasid, ¥r. Cook, thet you went up ito lrene Hhodes'

A, Yes, gir,

¢. What did you do then? Now, don't tell anyihiung Irene
Bhodes told you.

A, Berrvhill Q&%ﬁ\§§.

G. Who is Berrvhill?

A, Berrvhill is a City Polliceman - he came by and

#

and started talwing 1o me.

g, Did you tell him what you had seen?
AL Yes, siv.
the
{. Now, Mr., Cock, did you go back around ieﬁ%&eg of

g
el
[ ]

Fool Ball®?
A, No, sir,

¢. You mever did go back there?

A, I went when }
¢. When Mr. Pitis came up?

A, Yes, sir,

¢. You did go back to the rear of the Fool Hall?

A, Yes, sir.

¢. How much time expired from the time you saw Mr. Gideon

B

leave until kEr. Vittis and vou d4id geo behind the Pool

Room?
A. It wasn'i very long ~ I guess, maybe (en minutes.
¢. Now, this Pitts that you refeyr io, is that Duell Fitte?

L. Yes, egir.



G, Frow the City Yolice Uep

&, Yes, siv,

¢. What did vou find when you went to the
Fool Hall?

A. It had been broken inve.

¢. How diéd you determine that?

A. There was a large can on ithe side, anc
cut and the back door was wide open.
ME, BAHRIS:

You may inquive, Mr. Turner.

CHOSS EXAMIKATION

BY MR, TUKNER:

rear of

the

. Mr. Cook, did you ever work at Bay Hartor Pocl Hoom7

. No, sir.

. Did vou hang around there quite & pit?

. Back in 1961 did you hang avcund there guite a bit

¢
A
¢
A. Soue.
¢
A
¢

. Yes, sir.

You say vou had known Clarence Larl Gideon for ghout

gix months prior to that time, June 3, 1981%

=

A. About thai time 1 gusedgs.

. Have you ever played any voker with him?

A, No, sir.
&%

¢. Have you ever gambled with hiw?

A, No, gir.

(. Now, on this morning that you came hack frow Apalechicola

who was with you?

f
st
B

i

3
i



&

L, Wayne Vimcent, & boy

bovy nemed Charles, I don't

Charies?
Yes, sir.

How,

Chavies is all the namse

A. Mot sthat I kuow of, I've

hiw personally.
&. How, where
Room¥

vy
ks

A. 1 live right near Cher:
right down side of the building,
. Wow, there's a dirt road
Pool Hoom¥
side of it.

A. Almost right

And just two blocks down

home, is that right?

"Uh-hu. "

et
b
o

Wasn't his name Gary Shive

t livee in Apalachiccla,and &
his other name.

1 know hinm by.

heard of him, but I don't know
in relavion Lo Bay
Street, the street that runs

two bBlocks down,

that runs right beside the

that dirt sireet, or road,

Now, how far is Apalachicola frow that Pool Room?

A. About sixty miles, I guess.

L4
¢. Now, tell the Jury this:

blocks from yvour house?

I didu't want to go home

Yes, siv.

Z

-}

s

Why did the boys put ofi the

, because I was afraid

would 'get on me' aboul coming in drinking.

Oh, you had been drinking, eh?



&. About how wmuch had you had to drink?
A, Not too much.
§. Well, how much is that?

Well, & beer, ov twoe, 1 guess.

b

Q. Hadn't yvou been drinking a1 night
A, Ho, not all npight,
¢. What kind of car were you traveling onf

the vear model

A. Ap 0l wmodel Chevvolet - 1 don':z

¢. Do you know what hapvened to the

S';Tx

missing out of the Day MHar

i~

L4 2%

o
@

Q. Did you see any beer at the back of ithe Yool Room when

r. Harris asked you if you weut baock

foni
o

yvou went around thereS
there.
Mi, HAHERIS:

There's no testimony in this case at all aboul any beer,
¥My. Turner. You are the first to mention beer.
THE COUKRT:

There has been no testimony so far abuut any beer, Mr.
furney.

ME, TUHRNER:

o
[
[
o
&

I just asked him if he saw any beer when he went
back of the Pool Heoonm, your Honor.

HARRIS

1

Yes, but before you asked hiw that you asked Il

s

pened to the beer 'they said was missing outl of the B

!
-
e

i



Pool Hoom.'
ME. TURNEE:

wead the guesticn beck, Mies Helle.
Mit, HARRIS:

Head the last two gquestlions, Mrs, Heath, the very lasti
one and the one before that.
REPORTLE: (Heading back questions and answer)

Q. Uo you know what happened tu the beer they saild was
missing ouil of the Bay Harbor Pool Hoom?" Answer: "Ne."

. Bid you see any beer at the back of the Fool Hoom when

s

&

you went avound there. Mr., Harris asked you if you wenti back

%

there." Thie question was not answared.
MK, TUERNELR:

i apologize to the Court for the first question there,
it 'slipped by me,' I withdraw ii, and ask the Court io imstruct
the Jury to disrvegard it.

Ty COURT:

Gentlemen of the Jury, vou justi heard Mr. Turner's re-
guest with regard to thati disputed question, he has withdraws
that question from the record and you are imstructed by the
Court to disvegard it altogether, as though it had not been
asked.

BY Mi, TUHNER:

¢. Now, Mr., Cook, you may answer my lasi question, pleasge.

A. Whaet was 1t¥%

¢. I had asked you if you saw any beer at the baeck of the

building, the back of the Pool Hall, when vou went back there?



.

]

A

nere I didn'ti,

Hot when I first went avound

]

Where did the woys let you off, there on the cormer
In £romt of Hili's Grocery 3iore.
That would be acrouss the street from the Poosl Hall®

On the cormer, across the sivee:, yes, sir,

Now, how long did you stand there before you saw scue-

the Bay Harbor Pool Hoom?
I don't kpow exactly,
%here were you going to go¥

I was going tc hang around ithere uniil the Yool Hoom

Q
L
&
£
[+
-
E

they

. . 3

.

3

-

L - Y « - N <

What time did they open a??
i seven.
Seven ¢'clock - and this wes about five-thiriy?
Yes, six.
Where did the boys go when they let you off?
I guess they went home, i don'y know.
Where did they live?
Well, they lived over there in Sprimgfield somewhere,

%

wos stayfing over there, I don't kmow just where,

Q.
A,
¢.

A,

Now, this building is about how lomg?

About forty or fifty foot long.

How wide is it9
tTwenty-five or thirty.'
You mesn itwentyv-five oxr thiriy fest wide?

Yesn, sir.

It's an oblong building, right?

“lfe



A, Yes, sir.
Y. And it lies Bast ancd West, is that correct

i, Yes, siv.

Pde
Qm&
o
w

. And the front of facing the Bast,is that right?

A, Teg, 8iz.

@
@
]
ot
g
@
®
@
oo

¢. Now, the back deoor we're taliking about is
side, facing your house?

A. "Uh-hu."

¢. It's the nearest (o your house?

A, "Uh-hu."

¢. Now, that back door, does 1t swing out or in%

A, I don't kpow.

Q. You don't know?

A. No, I don't know how it swings.

Q. Allright, you said you saw somebody in the Fool RHoom -
did you walk across the road to see who it was?

A, Yes, sir.

¢. You had to walk across the sireei 1o see insids the
Pool Roowm didn't you¥

A. I walked across the street there in from of the Pool
Boom,

¢. And you saw Gideon there?

A. "Uh-hu."

¢. Now, where is the Cigarette Machine, if I was in the
building, ig it on the right or left side of the building?

A, It's on the right.

. On the right side of the building?

oo § ]



£ P o e ~
&, Eﬁz@:, g8ir.

¢. Wow, are ilhere any signs, or anything like that, in

4. Yes, there's & beer sign of some kind in the window, I'm
net sure what kind 1t is.

: %

¢. The window is painted on the outeide up tc about chest

®

high isn't it?

A, Yes, slir, something like that I guess.

(. And you can't see through that sign, or that paint, can
yé&?

A, "Nope "

¢. So you lookea threough this window and saw Gideon on the
right-hand side¥

A, Yes, sir,

C. About how far back was he from the front window?

A, About six or seven feet, I guess.

¢. How did you know it was Gideon, did you ever get a full
view of his face¥=

A, Yes, siv,

¢. He was looking at you?

A, That's right.

¢. And vou were looking at him?

A, That's right.

£
o

§. Was the froni door open or close

A, I didu't gee 1% - I don't know.

§

w

{

¢. Uid vou think there was something wrong about him bein

ingide the bullding?



i. 1 thought there was, ves, sir.

thought there was somethipg wrong in there?

&, ves, sir, 1 d4id.
Q. Did you know that he had worked in that place before?

A, 1 knew he worked in there, or stayed around there a lot.

£ Gideon

¢. In which dirvsction did you wai. ., after

in the front ol ihat sierey
4. To the right, and weni to the corner.
§. PThat would be toward Joe Hutechison's Pilling Bitatien,
is that right?

A, Twt's vight,

¢. That would be toward Toward Ireme Lhodes', is that ri
A, Yss, sir,
¢. Irene Hhodes was sitting om the porch, af the old
Frescoti Boarding House?
A. That's right.
¢. That's acrcses the street from the Pool Hall, and down
& block, toward Joe Hutchison's Station, comimg - what direction

right.,

o

would that be - North - is tha
A. Prow Joe E. Hutchison?
Q. Toward Joe E. Hutchison's, in a Noritherly direction,
is the Pool Hall, is that right?
A. Thai's rvight.
¢. Allright, how lomg did¢ you stay up there at the Vool
Hall - andé how long did you stay up there at the corner?
A. A ecouple of minutes, I guess. |

] G



Rhodea?
A
aCYO8S.
Q.

AQ

I was puzzled, 1 dide't kaow what to do.

Whet do you mean, you 'didn't koow what to do?!

I figured he was vy to something, but I didep't knovw

wag doing.

Where wae the nearegt Telephone Booth from youY

down on the corner.

Which cormer¥

On the corner of Craft Avenue and First Plaza, I belleve,
Now, is that the corner diagonally acress from lrene

It's across from where she was living, right stralight

Hight straight across from where she was living¥

Yes, about a half-a-~bloeck, & half-a-block down, there's

a "V sghape" in the road iherve.

Q.
A,
Q.
A

living.

Q.

Are vou talking about Henderson's Stovre?
Yes, sir.
That would be another half-block to the left wouldn't it?

@

Yes, sir, it's right straight doen from where she was

And she could sit on her fromt porch and see that

Telephone Booth?

A,
%.
AL

Q.

That's right.

The road comes up and 'dead-ends' right there doesan't it7?

e

That's right.

Now, where did you go after contemplating whal was go-

ing on around there?



e

SR I R

Q.

do, after you wen

e

On what streeitd

The same side of the street I walke

Allright, did vou gc to the froni of

Yes, siv, and looked in again,

Allvight, what did you see?

He was going out the back doo:.
Whe was going out the back door?

iy, Gideon.

Now, you saw that through & darkene

to fifty feet lomg?

A,

That's right.

Was there not a partition in there
Mo, sir.

There was not?

-

I don't belisve s80.

%

& back over.,

at

the

What do yvou mean by you don't belleve,

spe the back

o
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A, Rignt.

¢. Uld you go arcund to the back?

A. Ho, sir,

. You saw hiw from the front of the bullding, go ocut ithe
back door?

A, That's right.

§. MNow, next to the Feol Hall, on the righi-hand side,
there is another building is there noi?

A, Yenm, sir.

¢. And that's called whiat, Bay Harbor Bar?

A, That's right,

Y. And the allev-way in bLeiween those iLwo buildings is
about twelve or fifteen feet wide, is that righi?

A, Hight,

¢. Now, where did you see this large can¥

A, On the side of the building, right by the window,

. Well, now if 1 should look into the bullding from the
front would it be on ihe right-hand side of the building or
the left-hand side?

A, The vight-hand side,

. On the right-hand side - in the alley - between the
Pool Roow and the Bay Harbor Barx¥

A, That's vight.

. Down by the window?

L. That's righe.

¢. Is that also the side you saw the broken window on?

A, Yes, siz.



eouldnu't see in ouns of

feet

icok

de aren't

oo
£
I
[
o

ool

- uniess he was eight feet, or so, tal

those windows could he?

A. They're not guive that tell 1 don't ih

§, Well, sav, seven feet - geven
k3 s ¥

tall see in one of ithose windows

A. Abour sixz.

there could

7 man standing over
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I can,.
On the side?
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Yes.

What about

how high are they¥

A, Aboul 8iz

aliey between thoss itwo
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Toatb'ls vighy,

Now,

m’{ﬁ

r. Cook, éidn't you see three or four
there in the allev?

Just one.

Did you look in that alley?

No, si:,

How, frow

dirt road going to your

bulldipg isn't 1179

gi
q.
A.

Q.

Yes, mir,
The right~hand side is the alley?
“Unh-hu."

Mow, when did you next see Gideon after youw saw him,

as you sgay, going out of the back of that Fool Hall®

been

just

‘S&i.

Q.

&8

K.

1 walked on up to the cormer and he......

VWait a minute, now, which corner, the same one vou had
hefore¥

Yes, sir.

Uy toward Irene Ehodes'?

Yes, siv.

Allright, what did he do

¥

He turned around the corner of the '01l4 Fish House!

ftarf

I turned the corner.

Mow, is that the alley-way thati run the Bay

Harboy Pool Hoom¥

A,

Q.

The allevy that rune behind it, ves, sir.

And that would be right at the

Y



ndevson's slore, is that righ

sul across

L. Just across Lhe

rightt

&, That's righv.

-3

hi, what did he do?%

(e

A . He nt in the 'Yrhone
A, He went iv ¢ ‘'Fhone

¢. Now, where dic¢ you see him have the piny of wine in

his hanad?

A, He naa 1t in his hand.

o

Q. Is that the firs: time you saw the pint of winew
A, Yes,six,

¢. That was when you had seen aim come ou: of the back

of the store and go down the alley-way, right?

hang

this

A, Back of the ¥ool Hoom?

;. Now, what duv you mean by ‘'someihing in his pockets?!

). Do you mean by that, that the jacket he had on didn't

e

A
¢
A. They was 'all bulged out' I didn't kmow whet wes in them.
€

straight down, had {gesturing with hands ) something like
in the vpockeia?
A. He didn't have on no jacked.

(. How was he dressed’

4. He had on pante and shirt.
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4, His vpants rpocketis.

', Hear or front?

A
¢
A, Front.
. How were they bulged?
A

was 'itoating' some-

. They were just 'bulged out!
thing in thes.

was 1L neiore

¢. How, after he called the cab, how
the cab got therev?
A. About three or four minutes.
. ¥ho came for him?

. Preston Bray.

Q
A
¢. Do you know Mr, Bray?
A, Yes, siv,
¢. How long have you known him? At that time, I wmean.
A. I don't know, a couple of years 1 guess.

Q. Did Gideon say anything - did you see him do anything,
or hear hiwm say anvthing before he got in the cab?

A. Wo, sir,

¢. bid vou stay up there at the corner and watch him all
that time¥

A, Yes, aiv.

¢. Could he ses u¥

L
5
o
e
!

4, Yes, sir,

. And he could see Irvene Hhodee¥



. 18B, BLY.

¢. You dian't use the Telephone at all?

&, Bo,sir.

¢. Now, when vou looked in the fyont of thet PFool Hall
how far from the front, where vou were gtanding, was the first
Pool Table¥

A. It was asboutl s8ix fool.

€. Prom the front doory

A. PUh-~hu."

nl Taple?

¢, And what did you see on that P

%

A, I seen front of the Clgareise HMachine, some rags
and some bagy.

¢. il . say the top of the Cigarette Machine?

A. The fiont of the Cigarvetie machine.

¢. The froont of 1t7%

A, "Uh-hu."

. What do vou wmean by 'the fromt of it?"

A, The glass front,

(. You mean the glass fromt was off the machine and lay-
ing on the table¥

A, "Uh-hu."
Where was it layving on the table?

£

A. dJust about the middle of the Fool
G. Allvight, what else did you see on ihe Yool Tablel

A, Some rags,

e
&

. What kind of bags ar

A, Canvas bags.,
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wag .,

they?

o
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How larg
About six or seven inches deep, I guess.
How wide weie they?

(Measu.ing with Uingers, approx

About like that, I guess,

Eol- S I Y ~ B I <
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Abhout eight inches
About that.

Had you ever seen those bage before¥

Yes, sir, I had sesn ther nefore,

Wonat kind of bage are thev?

Money dags.

Money Bags - dild they have a zipper across
No, siv.

They were cpen across ithe top?

"Uh-hu."

¥hat kind of money bags sre these?

They fit a Cigarvettie Machine,.

And how do they fit in there?

I don't know how they £it in there,

And thev are Canvas Bags, tc hold coins, is
I believe they're canvas.

Well, ihey ave cloth of some sori?

“WUh-bu,"

iy of them 4id you see¥

o8e that's what
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§. Now, you are sure they wers

a Money Box, & metal boxY

A, These wors bhags,

Can you be sure of thaty
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gir, I belileve theyv were bags.

Where did you see My, derryhilly

He come by and stopy

kA

£ W

Why did he stiop?

¥Well, he kunowed me and stopped to taliz 1o nme.

He stopped and falked with yvou?

Yes, sir,

.

Eol T <R

b
o
)
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And wher he stopped to talk with you what 4did

.

hin?

A, I told him
¢. Told him about what?

About the Yool Hoowm being broke iunio.

iooked
n f’*»ﬁ

A
¢. You told hiwm about the Vool Heom being broken into?
A. 1 toid hiw it/1ike 1t had been.

&. You didu'i i@éi&i@ that vou had seen Clerence Earl
Gideon inside of ii - you told him the Pool Hoom had been

broken intoe¥

xS
foet
.
.
¥y
e
[
oot
o
o
.

A, I told hin it iocked Lo me



Gideon inside?

+
v

A, I ¢idn't rell hiwm.

§. Why didoa't vou tell hiwm, he was an Ufficer of

¢. Uid be asi you if you saw anybody in there’

A, Ko,

. You didn't feel it was your duty to tell hig
had seen?

2

A. He just weni and checked it and called Mr. Fi

Q. Well, until Mr. Pitts could get there, did yo

¢. You didn't go iunside®

A. Mot with nim I didn't.

¢. How, when Lo, iitis got over Lheie did you te
Pitus?

A. Yes, Bi:.

¢. You 1old hin who you bad seen inside®

-0

gy

o. He wen: inside and looked aroumd, I didn'

RO
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naty

5
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Vou
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N tell Ireme Hhodes you called the

A, I didn't call the "Cops.

the "Uo

Y. wvidn't there Lo v
Berryniil got there¥

A, "Uh-hu."

&. befoare i

L. Tes, 8ir.

¢. Vig vou tell her :

gtore?

b el
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o
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o
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g. You saw

ad said
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Yes.
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A. I stayed up at the rool Hoom,

(31
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o Hendsrson's Siore fnend

there and have a conversation

with by, Henderson,

. well, now, seniy, 1is that trus, oy aoi?

MH, HARRIS:

If it please the vourt, M. Turne: i arguing with this
witness, he has answered that question at least six times, and
he justi keeps asking him the same guestvion. I object to him
arguing with the wimess.

THE COURT:

funks
[y
et
&
N

to be as Liberal with you &s

My, Turner, 1 ¥
but I believe ke has answered thet guestion,
ME, TURNEL:

Aliright, vour Henor, he has not answered it Lo my satle-

faction, bui if the Court thinks he has answered 1it, he has

ansgwerea 1it.

BY MR, TUBRNEE:

(. When was the lasl time vou had a

you gotv off the cavr

A. Well, it wase sometime before, the stores had slready

closed down ai “Apalas

haefore we got there.

o e
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L. odid andc Shiver go into
B

A, Ho.

& . 3 I oy AR

. Uid you all E of of

corner, could you sec hiam in the alleyv-way beiween those bulld

ings?

A. Between the bulldings 1 could see him,.

rayt.

Q. Were vou there when the Police investigated this break
ing and entering®

A, Yes, sir.

. Did vou with 8 six-pack of beer in his hand

six cans of beery

8
.
ﬁ‘;

. Did you see hin
. Ko.

‘
A
¢
A
Q

.
.
.

from the time you fivst

did you see him with any beer in his hand, or in his pocket,

did he take anything out of his pocket that locked like beer®

~34-
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¢. That'e whae 1's

Now, if the Coui.

¢. The lase time you testified in this were vo

asked the following quesiion:

ME, HAHRIS:

1 object to that your Homor, that's nov the
cross exauine this wiitness,
ME, TUREEHR:

1 submit, vour Honor, that he did testify gevialn things

the last time he vestified in this case and I'm only going to

prove to¢ this Jury, by this witness' own testi
%‘3 ¥ ¥ %

gc tesvify.

THE COURT:

Vou can asi hism if he testified to what

read the guestion to him and leti him he did, oy did

noct, testify to,

MR, TURNEE:

That is exacily .

8hall I proceed?



agked ihis

M. BARRIS:

That ig not the snroper way

I cen noint out hig srior ingonsisen!
r. Harris,

THE COUKT:

o
p
s

if you will do

t
ot
o

properly, for the gquestion, then a

the question, if you will do 1v

M. TURNER:

o
O
i
5
ot
ook
[
oags
i

b

[
b
&

Well, your bon

THE COUNT:

&
£
[
&
b
o
ot
&
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-
oy
“
o
w
e
€

1f vou ave golug to &

presence of the Jdury.

THE CoUnT:

Now, Turner, is it are to

record. Head the guestion.
ME, TURKER:

This ie the guestion that
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The Defendant asked this witnese the follow

Ly s J L y 5 sob * 5 1 FEET
¢. Have vou ever been convicted of a felony?'

sir, never have." I proffer to prove that by

HARKRIS

o
et

the rule. He knows the proper

witnegs, He must first ask ithat w!

he can use that record, that record
by anvbody,
ME, TURNER:

There is someone presemt, vouy Homos, who can cersily io

~y 3 5
viz g i8 %

this record, the Courti Heporter,

Court Reperter who reported the prior trial in this case, Mrs.
Hesnth ie the Court Heportey who is reporting the proceedings

in this trial, she can certify to her own record, and if the

State insists 1'11 vput '"Miss' Kelle on the

have her certify to this record.

#

method of certification, My, Harris
ME, BARHIS:
No, that ie not necessary here, noi at this tims,

ME, TURNEH:

et

Well, your Homox, I asked him if he had ever been comvicted

&

of a felony and he said 'l stoled a car and was pul on 7
tion for it.' Then, 1 asked him if, av the prior trial in this

case he denied that, he ssid 'mo,' all I wani to do is prove

in this same case, how am 1

what he 4id say et the

e

going to prove it if I can't ask him the guestion,.
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vou 4know he plead gullty?

. BAERIS:

I undersios

co ey he plesd

TURNEH :

Ko, he did say e plead gu

gullty
Car

and was

said Y1
sut on srobation L

in this world about nlesding
If vour lonor lease, 1 will ad yvou the wihole
of the reco:d desgling with this mavier at the prior
this case and that will setile the wholie thing.
Reading from record,.

"By the Defendant:

%G . How long have you lived here?

"4, About

five year

o

.

n¢ ., Have vou ever been arrvested’
"Wy, Harris:

to thet gussitioh,

Phe State objects

if
that 1s an

iz

"Phe Court:

"Objection sustained

"You may ask

im 1f he has ever been convicied
offense, That would

ne a8

sroper guestion if you

gant Lo
whether he has ever been convicied of g e¢eriminal

offense.

said ous

trial of

groied 8

wy

transc

W

s

e

the Couri please,
5O GUEeB L

of a crim

SRR
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theft,

P sy oF %y - | DA ¥ = & gn
of a felony and he has answered yes,

that's the

ME, TUL

THE COUHT:
Jdust a
talk to me and

MHE, TUHNEHR:

I's having to

THE COURT:
Allrighe,
ME., ADAMS.
The

course, that's

been 'Have you

'mo, I have not been convicted,' that wouls

(=34 2¢1

min

guestion

& felony?

P e < P
BEE Lelen conviocieso ol gax

of i:, yvou cannot go any further inte thar.
he has nade five inconsistent siatements

ute now, let's Just one ithing a8t a tinme,

B

A G e

Adans |

Bnot

o

contend with

0f

guestion should have
had
piead guilty,' aud he/said

an
ever heen convicited or

have heen & true

L2

statement, he has nct been convioted, I aw reliably inforumed that

i (G



he plead guillty and was placed on probation. The guestion its-
self, asked at the former trial, wae incoumplete, and sc was Mr,
Turner'e, he asked him if he had ever been convicied, and ke
can truthfully say right now, 'mo, I have never been comviected.'
ME. TURNER:

Myr. Adams, you are arguing & 'distinction withouwt a differ-
ence.' A conviction at law contemplates either & Jury verdict
of guilty or a plea of guilty. That is & conviction, and he is
oonvicted when the Court adjudges him guilty of e crime,

Mi. HARRIS:

Will the Judge please rule on my objection, and let's make
our argument to the Court and not to each other.
ME. TURNER:

Just a minute, please, let me make my argument to Mr,
Harris about this business of proving & prior inconsistent
statement. I can prove by any witness, particularly on cross
examination, and it goes to his credibility, its testing his
oredibility, whether he had, under oath, at a prior trial, de-
ded the fact that he had been convicted of any oriminal offense.
It goes to his credibility if he has made a prior incomsistent
statement. How far I cen go in proving his criminal record is
ebsolutely true, but I am abandoning trying to prove amy further
oriminality on the part of this witmess, but I am simply at-
tacking his coredibility because he testified under cath at a
prior trial contrary to what he is testifying to here today, and

I think the Jury has got a right to know that, its testing his

oredibility, it goes purely to that.

-4l



THE COURT:

What does the State have to say on that?
ME. HARRIS:

I thought I bad made myself elear on that, Judge. There
is a proper way for him to do what he says 1s proper for him
to do, the State says he has not done it the proper way, he
can't 'grab that little brown book he's got there' every time
some witness comes up here and testifies and ask them 'didn't
you testify so-and-so' at the prior trial in this case, he must
first lay a proper foundatiom in order to have the witness deny
that 'he did so-and-so' in the other trial, then, he may take
his record, if he has a proper record, and attempt to impeach
him, but he just 'picks his book up and says, didn't you testify
at a prior trial that you had never been convicted of a‘ﬁrime;'
that is highly improper. Mr. Turmer kmows how it should he dme.
(. ADAMS :

I would like to add this, your Homor, toc what Mr. Harris
has said: If the State should make a mistake, or error, as it
is, that the Defendant's Attorney has made, it would be grounds
for a mis-trial.

ME, TURNER:

I disagree with that statement, your Honor.
THE COURT:

Let's don't go into that, I think you can proceed, if you
will proceed properly to show a prior inconsistent statement.

Bring the Jury back, Mr. Bheriff.

At this point the Jury returned to the Court Hoom and



resumed their places in the Jury Box,
THE COURT:
Do you Gentlemen eoncede the presence of the Jury?®
ME. ADAMS:
The State does, your Honor.
ME. TURNER:
The Defendant does, your Homor.
THE COURY:
You may proceed.
BY ME. TURNER:
¢. Mr. Cook, have you ever denied, under oath, that you

had been convicted of a felony? Prior to today, I'm speaking

of.

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Where, and when, was that done?
ME. HARRIS:

Now, if the Court pleass, 1 object to any further guestion~
ing along that line.
THE COURT:

I think he can gé further. Go ahead and ask the question,
Mr. Turner,
BY MR. TURNER:

Q. When and where aid you deny your criminal record, Mr.
Cook?

A. Right here, the last time he was tried, twoc years ago.

Q. By 'he' you said 'the last time he was tried, you mean

the last time this Defendant, Clarence Earil Gideon was tried?

—4 3



A. That's right.

G. Before I leave you, oould you tell me, if you remember,

how much alcoholic beverages you had to drimk that night?

A. No, I ecouldn't tell you that, I didn't measure it, so

I don't know exactly how much.

Q.

Approximately how much, and when was the last you had

te drink, what tim@.did you take your last drink before you

were put off the car in Bay Harbor, Florida?

A.

~yabout
About twelve o'clock was the last, I drank/two/beers

then, thai was the last I had.

> o » O

. You drank twoc beers?
. About that.

. At Apalachicola?

. Yes, sir.

Q.

Was that all you had to drink that night, just those

two beers?

A.
Q.
A,
Q.
A.

o'elock.

I believe it was.

pid you have anything te eat that night?

I don't remember whether I eat anything or not.
What time did you leave the dance?

Well, we took some girls ocut down there about twelve

Q. You left the dance at twelve o'elock?

A. "Uh~hu."

Q. And where did you spend the rest of that mnight?

A. We stayed with some girls.

¢. Steyed with the girie?

—dd



A. "Uh-bhu."

Q. The morning that you say you saw Gideon over there in
the Bay Harbor Pool Room, you had known him xix months before?

A. Approximately that.

Q. You knew his normal walking gait, how he walked?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you see anything peculiar about the way he walked
that morning?

A. Acted kinder drunk, I guess.

Q. Was that the impression you got when you saw him?

A. "Uh-hu."

Q. Was that based upon the way he walked?

A. The iay he acted.

Q. Except for the time when you say you were looking
through that front window at him you didn't get within forty
feet of him did you?

A. Yes, he was standing there by the Cigarette Machine
about seven or eight feet inside the door.

Q. I say except for that one time there, you say you saw
him later going out the back door, that wae about as close as
you got to him that morning, is that right?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The alley-way that he was going down, and the street
that you were going down, they paralel don't they, they both
come out up there at that corner where you say you saw him?

A. That's right.

Q. When you welked across there and talked to Ireme Rhodes



was that before or after she went to the Telephone Booth?

A. Before.

¢. Before?

A. "Ub~hu."

¢. Did she go down to the Telephone Booth while you were
there?

A, Yes, sir,

. And you waited en the porgh until she got back?

£

"Uh-~bu."

*

. That was before Berryhill got there?

Yes.

Did she bring anything back with her?
. S8he brought a pint of wine.

How much was in the bottle?

. About half.

. It was about half full?

“Uh-hu."

*

What did she do with 1t%

. Bhe drank 1it.

She drank 1t?

1 guess she did, it was open.

Pid yon get a drink out of 1it?

O O O O o Lo O O

No, eir, I don't drink wine.

¢. Did you wave Berryhill down or did he just stop and

talk with you?
A. He just stopped and talked with me.

¢. You made no attempt to stop him?

B



A, No, he just stopped, he knew me and just stopped to
talk with me.

ME. TUEKER!
PThat's all at this time for this witness.

HE~-DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. HARRIS:

Q. Mr. Cook, did you see anyorne else in the Poocl Hoom
other than Clarence Earl Gideon?

A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know Ira Strieklaﬁd, Jr.?

A. Yes, Bir.

Q. Do you know what he was, he was doing at that time, what
kind of work he was doing?

A. He was running the Pool Heom.
MR. TURNER:

Just & minute - I objeet to that, if the Court please.
I would like to oross examine this witness on that ome point
before he makes a flat statementi here thet Ira Striekland, Jr.,
was ruaning the Fool Hoom.
THE COURT:

Let him finish his examination, Mr. Tarmer, you can come
back then and cross examine him.

MR. TURNER:
Your Bomor, this is aemetking that should have been brought

out on direet examinatiom, he has left it here for rebuttal, or
something, I would have crces examined him befors if he had

brought it out im his direct examination.

. &



THE COUET:
You will heve a right to cross exaumine him.
You may proceed, Mr. Harris.

BY ME, HARRIS:

Q. Mr. Cook, how do you know Ira Strickland, Jr. ran the
Pool Hall?

A. Well, I know him pretty good.

Q. You didn't see him in there when you saw €larence Earl
Gideon?

A. No, sir.

Q. You testified on cross examination by this Defendant
there that you had previously testified in this ecase that you
had not been convicted of a felony. You have also testified
here today that you had plead gulliy to stealing an automobile,
is that what you said?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you place any distinction between & convietion and
a plea of gullty?

MR, TURNER:

1 object to that, if the Court please, it's a matter of

law.
THE COURT:

The objection will be over-ruled.
BY MR. HARRIS:

§¢. What did yoé mean when you said you had not been con-
victed of a felony, and yet, you say you plead gullty to steal-

ing an automobile?
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A. Well, I didn't guite understand what a felony was then

ME. TUHNER:

I object tc this, and move to strike 1i%.
THE COURT:

Motion will be denied.

ME. TURNEK:

Your Homor, I would like to be heard on that, if you will
hear me.
THE COURT:

Allright, I'11 hear you.

Take the Jury out, Mr. Sheriff.

At this point the Jury retired from the Court Hoon,

THE COURT:

Allright, Mr. Turner, you may prooeed.
MR. TURNER:

Now, if the Courti please, whether a man has been convicted
of a felony or not is mot for him to say, depending upon the
‘nicety of the languege' used, it is a matter of law whether a
mar has been convieted of a felomy or moi; now, te allow him
to say 'well, I didn't understand about that,' he didn't have to
understand it, es a matter of law, if he pleads gullty or is
convicted by a Jury certain penalties attaeh to that thing that
makes it a felony, depending upon the punishment, therefore, if
he has been couvicted of a felony, whether he understood it or
not, it stands, and I an going to reguest the Court to charge
the Jury that stealing an automobile i3 a felony under Floridae

law. Now, this ie a matter of law for the Court to move omn, he
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cennot he heard to say 'well, I didn't understand it,' if that
be true‘ws eould never prove prior inconsistent statements; this
witness in not telling the Court what the law of the State of
Florida ie, the Statutes teil the Court that, im addition to
cese law; if he has been convieted of a felony, whether he un-
derstood it or mot, he was asked that question, it's not for us
to determine whether he has or not, it's for him to fimd out,
and if the Court has operated om it it is a faet beyond which
there 1s no dispute amy more, econviction is like having & bri-
ver's License, you have got one or you havem't, Now, he hes
either been convicted or he hasn't, and any testimomy to the
contrary should not be allowed to go to this Jury. It's &2 'tell-
ing point' to his own credibility, is he going to say at another
trial, if there should be one, 'that I didm't understand the
first and second one.' This is a matter of law whether he has
been convicted or not, and if he has he ought to go before that
Jury without any explanation on the part of this witness. It's
a 'telling point for eredibility' and it ought to be allowed
without him being able to explain tc the Jury whether he under-~
stood what was meant by a felony or mot. I would be glad to

let this point go, except that you instructed thie Defendant be-
fore the proper procedure to go by and he went by that prooe-
dure, and now, to allow the witness to 'back out of it' is just
ebsolutely unfair.

Listen to this, please, your Homor, I'm going to read from

the record of the prior trial in this same case! Reading from

transeript of previous trial:
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"The Court:

"ohjection sustained.

"My. Gideon, you can ask him if he has ever been gonvioted
of a criminal offense.

fhe witness was on the stand, listening to the Court's in-
structions to Mr. Gideon.

"Phat would be & proper guestion if you want to prove
whether ke has been convicted of a criminal offemnse.

"By Mr. Gideon:

Q. Havovyeu ever been convicted of & felony?

“"A. No, sir, never have."

What eould be clearer tham that? Nothing. Asd to allow
the witness to say 'I don't understand it today' is whelly and
totally unfair to this Defendant. Thie question was asked by
the Defendant, whe was comducting his own defense in the trial
of the former case, the first case that was tried, this De-
fendant asked that question under spaéifie instructions by the
Court. 1 oontend, your Homor, that this witmess should not be
allowed to excuse away his ignorance in this matter, it's a2
matter of fact, an established fact, and a matter of record.

1 think it's highly improper and highly prejudiced to allow
him to explain away that he didn't understand this thing, it's
s matter of law. How could there be any guestion of fact about
whether or not I have been convicted, 1f I had, or this man has
been convicted, how can ii be questioned in another Court? It
cannot, it's a matter of faet, and on that faot it bgeomes a

question of law, that's the reason I don't think it should go to
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this Jury with any embellishments, any excuses, or to withdraw
from it the damaging testimony that it carries, this witness has
denied what he said, and denied it uwnder ocath, and I think this
Defendant is entitled to that touching his credibility, becaase
the Court knows that this is the most damaging testimony against
the Defendant to allow this witness to explain away his con-
viction, his conviction is a matter of law, it'e also a matter
of record and that record can be produced in this Court. If he
tecan't understand the Kinge English' that's one thing, but to
allow him to say 'l don't know the difference between being cun-
victed and pleeding guilty' is a matter of law, that's a matter
of law and the Court is awere that 1t is matter of law. I will
ask the Court "is there a difference?" If there 1is, then, 1
will withdraw my objection. There is no difference in a plea
of guilty and being convicted by a Jury.
THE COURT:

Allright, I will hear the Btate now.
ME. HARRIS: |

By Mr. Turner's very argument he, I think, defeats what he
says, he says it doesn't make any difference whether this man
Jmows what & felony is or anything about it, bhut yet, if he's
asked the guestion he must know about it and give the right ans-
wer; it just doesn'l make sense. This Counrt is wellrawara, and

1 think can take judicial kmnowledge of the fact that many people

come before this Court, and other Couris, which you can ask
'have you ever been convicted of a felony, and they will say ne,

but I plead guilty to sc and go.' This man had a perfect right
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to rebut what kr. Purner is saying here; in this trisl he admits
that he has not been eonvicted of & felomy, he says he plead
guilty, he admitted what he said et the prior trial, he admits
that he said he had not been convicted of & felony at the prior
trisl; &t this trial he said he plead guilty to stealing an auto-
mobile., How, Mr. Turner, I kmow, in his summation io the Jury
1s just going to 'raise cain,' and that's why he just keeps on
gbout the man 'irying to hide something from the Jury,' eto.
He told this Jury, when he was asked if he had been convicied of
a felony, that he had plead guilty to stealing an automobile and
was placed on probatiion, and he meant 'no, he had noct been con-
victed, but that he did plead guilty.' And the law itssell makes
a distinotion betweer the two in eivil cases, if you have & erimi-
nal case and you are attempting to get in a convietion of reck-
less driving invelving & negligence suit, if a man enters & plea
of guilty you can get it in the eivil suit, if he's convicted by
a Jury you eannot,
MR, TURNEH:

May I be heard further, your Honor?
THE COURT:

Yes, I will hear you.
ME. TURNER:

¥y. Harris knows the rulee in a olvil case is 'you must
prove your negligence in the first place,' themn, you can intro-
duce eny plea of guilty, but you must first prove the negli-
gence. Now, es tc this, Mr. Harris is arguing that ignoranee

of the law is excusable for this witness. It is not. Whether
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he hat been comvicted or mot is a matter of law. I don't carve

if he's ignorant of it, or if I'm ignorant of it, that still
don't 'change the spots on that leopard,' he's & convieted felon.
Now, I'm saying that Mr. Harris is saying that he should be al-
lowed to explain to thie Jury his ignoraace of the law, and I
say there is no excuse im this Court.

MR. HARRIS:

Jedge, your Homor, do you remember your charge to & person
when they come uy before you for sentemecing, if they have plead
guilty you begin by saying, "You, Uohn Dog' having entered a
plea of guilty,' etc., and it they are comnviected by a Jury you
begin by saying, "You, 'John Doe,' having heen conviected by a
Jury," ete., I say there is a distinctive difference in a plea
of gullty and being comvicted by a Jury.

THEE COURT:

I'm going to over-rule your objection and let him answer
the questien.
MK. TURNER:

He has already answered the guestion, vour Homor, but I
wanted te be heard on 1it.
THE COUERT:

Bring the Jury back, Mr. Sheriff.

At this point the Jury retursed to the Couwrt Hoom and re-
sumed thelr places in the Jury Box.

THE COURT:

Do you Gentlemen concede the presence of the Jury?
MK. ADAMS:

The SBtate does, your Homor.
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MK. TUHENER:

The befendant does, vour Homer.
THE COURT:

You may proceed.

ME. TURKBH:

Your Homor, would you kindly rulCon my Motion to Sirike
this testimony? I made a Motion to Strike before this argu-
ment set in,

THE COUHT:
Motion to 8trike will be denied.
You may proceed.

BY MK, HARRIS:

Q. My, Cook, at the prier trial, when you were asked that
question you didn't know what a felony was?
ME, TUENER:

I object to the guestion &s repetitious. He hag already
answered the question.
THE COURT:

The objection will be over-ruled, let him answer the gues-
tion.

BY MR. HARRIS:

¢. How, answer my questiion, Mr. Cosk.

A. That's right.

§. Do you mean by thet answer, 'that's righi,' that you
did not kuow what a felony was?

A. No, I didn't know what it was.

¢. Do you now know what 1t is?
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. Do I kunow what it is¥

. Do vou know whet & felony is now?

. Yes,sir,

Do you know where Irene Khodes is?

. No, sir.

. When was the last time you saw hei?

. The last tyvial day, sboutl two yvesrs 8g9o.

You mean at the time this case was tried before?

. fes, sir.

Pl S« .~ Y ~ R

. You testified you saw Irene Hhodes with & bottile of
wine?

A. Yes, sir.

(. Where did she gei that wine?

A. Out of the 'Phone Booth, down &t the store.

(. Who put the wine there, if you know?

A, Gideon,
ME., HARRIS:

Phat's all. You may inguire, Mr., Turner.

RE~Ck058 EXAMINATION

BY MK, TUENRER:

. Mr. Cook, did you see Mr. Gideom put the wine there?

A, Yes.

(. Kow, how old were you when you plead gullty to this
felony, Mr. Cook?

4, beventeen.

¢. S8eventeen?

A. Yes, sir,
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Q. Were there other people involved in this?

A, Yes,sir.

§. Did you have legal Gounsel at the time?

ME., HARRIS:

Your Honor, don't you think Mr. Purner has gone a little
too far in this? The Btate objects to 1i¢.
BME., TURNER:

Now, your Homor, Mr. EBarris has established he didn't know
what he was doing, I have & right to inguire about 1%.

THE COUKT:

Objection sustained.

ME. TURNEK:

Has the Court ruled that I cannot inguire about whether
he knew or not?
THE COURT:

You can inquire whether or not he had legal Counsel, he
has answered the guestion,.
MH., TUHNER:

That would bear upon whether or not he kmew what felony
wae. Mr. Harris asked him, and the Court sllowed him to answer
over my cbjection, that he didn't know what a feleny was when
he did it, so I want to find out if he knew.

THE COUWUT:

The objection will be over-ruled - I mear the objection
will be sustained - the State's objection,
BY MR. TURNER:

§¢. Mr. Cook, how much education did you have, how far did
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yvyou advange in school?

A.

-« B S « -

beceuse

Q.

I went about half-way through the eleventh grade.

. The eleventh grade?

. YTee, sir.

. Was that your first coriminal offense?
. fes, gir.

. You had nevey been in the Court Hoom before?

been
No, sir - well, Y might heve/in the Court Hoom, buti not

I had to go.

That was the first time you had been in the Court Room

as a Defendant?

A.

Q.

Yes, sir.

Did the Judge explain to you about your rights when you

plead guilty?

> o P

Q.

. Yes, 8ir.
. He dia?

. Yes, sir.

Did he read you twenty-two different gquestions for you

to answer?

A.

Q

A.
Q.
A.
Q.
Al

Q.

I don't remember whether he di¢ all that or not.

. Was that Judge E. Clay Lewis, Jr., Cirecult Judge?

Ko, sir.
Which Judge was it%
Phe Juvenlle Judge.
Pardon?
The Juvenile Judge.

The Juvenile Judge?

—58—



A, Yes, gir.
Q. Which Juvenile Judge¥
A. Well, I don't know what his name was, but he was the
Juvenile Judge.
¢. You don't know which one it was?
. No, sir,

it
. ¥e put me on Indefinite Probation, I stayed om/about a

A
§. Por what period of time were vou placed on probation?
A

year and & half, 'or so.'

ME. TURNKER:

That's all.

HE-DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. HARRIS:
. Was that here in Bay County?
. Yesg, sir.

Was Judge Bert Davemport the Juvenlle Judge?
I believe so.

. And that was in Juvenile Court?

o P £ P L

. Yes, s8ir.

Q. Have you ever plead guilty, Kr. Cook, to any offense
that has been in this Juvenile Court you referred to¥
MR, PURNER:

I object to that, if the Court pleass, he's leading the
witness, his witness, that's’ﬁi% witnees.
THE COVET:

Objection will be sustained.
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Y MRE. HAERIS:
€. bDon't you know, Mr. Cook, that you can't be convicted,
or plead guiity, to & felony in Juvenile Court?
ME. TURNEER:
I ebject to that, if the Court please. That's the State's
own witness.
THE COURT:
The objection will be sustaimed.
MR. HARRIS:
I heave npothing further.
HE-CHOSS EXAMINATION
BY ME, TUHNER:
Q. How old did you say you were, Mr, Cook, at the time?
A, 3eventeen.
ME. TUMNEK:
Ko further questions.
THE COURYT:
Anvthing further from the State?
MR, EAHREIS:
Nothing further from the State, your Homor.
THE COURT:
Anything further from the Defendant?
ME, TUENER:
¥othing further for the Defendant, your Honeor.
THE COURT:
You mey etep down, Mr., Ceok.

Thie witness then left the stand.
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Ira Sirickland, Jr., called s & wituness on behalf of the
Plainvifi, State of Florida, being firet duly sworn by the Clerk

of this Court, testified as follows:

DIRKECT EXAMINATIOR
BY ME. ADAMS:
€. State your name, please.
A. Ira Strickland, Jr.
¢. Where do you live, Mr. Strickland?
. Route Two, Bex 8188, Panama City.

. That is Panams Clty, Bay County, Florida?

o S-S

Right.

What kind of work do you do, Mr, Strickland?

o

I'm 8tock Clexrk for Bay Manufaecturing.

Do you know where the Bay Harbor Pool Room ig located?
. Yes, sir.

Do you know who operates that place?

I don't believe I know who operastes that place now.
Do you kmnow who operated it on dune 3, 19617

Yes, 8ir, I know that, I did.

Do you own that propsrty?

No, sir.

Did you own 1t at that time?

. Ko, sir.

. You were renting 1t9

I was renting it, yes, sir.

£ T o o S B O oo oo o P

Do you know the Defendant, Claremce Earl Gideon?

Yes, sir.

g‘p
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¢. Dbid you know bhim in June, 19617

4. Yes, sir.

€. Was he in your empleoy on June 3, 19617
A, Ko, sir,

¢. He had, or hed bhe, prior to that time, heen employed by
you there arcund the Fool Hoom?

A, Ko, sir, I wouldn't say he was eunloyed by me, he 'hope'
me on different occasions, such ag sweeping and thimgs like that,

¢. Just helped you out there around the Fool Roow gemerally,
not regularly ewployed¥y

A, That's rigat. He 'hung around there' quite a lot of the
time and if I happened to need somebody to do odd jobs I let him
do them, bui he was not on the payroll, I just paid him for thev
job he did when he finished 1%,

¢. On June 3, 1961, you were operating Bay Harbor Pool Room?

A, Yesn, s8ir, 1 was,

¢. bid this Defendant, Clarence Earl Gideon, have any au-
thority, as your employee, or otherwise, to be in the Bay Harbor
Pool Hoom early in the worning of June 3, 16617

A. ko, sir.

Q. He was not working for you at ihat time?

A. No, sir,

Q. Had he been working for you immediately prior tc that
time?

A. No, sir. Let me clarify this by saying again, he was
never on the payroll,

¢. And you mean by that, that he was jusi & frequeni visitor
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there and sometimes helped out?

A, Yes, sir,

§. Allright, eir, now on the 8rd day of June, 1961, were
you notified that something unusual had happened to your Pool
Room?

A. Yes, sir.

G. Did you go down there?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Will you tell thae Jury, please, sir, just examctly what
you found when you asirived at the scene?

A, 1f I recall correctly, I belleve it was & fifteen-gallon-
druz which was used for garbage purposes at the back bad been
moved from directly baek of the bullding to along the side of the
building to a window that didan't have any bars installed in it,
it wes juet a plate glass window, end this window glass was Lro-
ken out, and from all appearance it had been broken from the ocut-
side, because the biggesti part of the glass from the window was
on the inside.

(. When you arrived at the scene was the back door open?

A, Yes, sir, it was.

¢. That back door, how was 1t fastened, when you normally
closed it, how did you fasten it?

A. Well, at that time, apd as long as I stayed theve, I
alweys closed the back door first, closed it from the inside
with a bay acrvoss 1t.

G. In other words, in order fer the back door to be opened

the bar would have to be lifted from the inside, is that right?
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A, That's right.
time,

&. Uid you have, at that/a Cigarette Machime in that
piace of business®

A, Yes, sir.

. Vhat was the condition ¢f the Cigarette Machine when yom
arrived at the seene, oy the Bay Harbor Fool Hoou?

A, The money box was prized out from the machipe, and firom
2ll indications had been emptied of any change that might ééve
been in 1v,

Q. Did you also have a music machine in there, & Piceole,
or coin coperated music box?

L. Yes, sir.

¢. What, if amything, had happened to that?

A. The same thing that had happened to the Cigaretie Ma.
chine had happened to it alse, the box where the money fell in-
to had heen prized out and the change that might have been in
there had been removed.

¢. Did yvou see the 1lide, or the 1id to the Cligaretie Ma-
chine anvwhere?

. The 1147
The 1id that yvou have testified about being prized out.
. Yes, sir,

. Where ghouts was 1it?

I - S -

. If I remsmber ecorvectly, it was layving on the flcor by
the machine,
. By the machine?

L. Yes, sir,
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¢. How far was that from the Pool Table, from where the
Feol Tables were located inm the room?

A. It wouldn'i've been move than two or three foot.

Q. Just a short space?

A, Yes, sir,

(. Now, let me ask you about the coin box to the Cigarette
Machine., That is a metallic box is it not?

Mit, TURNER:

bon't lead the witness too much, Mr. Adams, 1 object to
the State Attorney leading the wlitness, 1f the Court pleass.
THE COURT:

The objection will be 8&§§ain@d.

BY MH. ADAMS:

§. What kind éf a box ls it that the money falls in, when
you'd put a guarcver im the machine and get a package of Cigar-
ettes out of it¥ |

A. I believe it's & form of metal, some kind of a metal box,
I couldn't tell you what kind of metal it is, but it's metal, I
believe.

Q. How does thai fit into the machine itsself, is it locked
in, or how is it attached to the inegide of the machine?

A. Yes, sir - the front of the machisme, if I remember cor-
rectly, of course, il has been sometime back since this happemned,
but the front of ths maehiné&peﬂs up to install the Cigareties,
and once vou get Lo ihis geiﬁ%, opened up to put im the Clgar-
ettes, the box thai catches the money is placed undermeath the

Cigerettes that ave storved in the machine.



§. Then, when the face of the machine is removed you have
access Lo the box in which the coins fall when you get Cigar-
ettes ovut of lhe machine?

A. That's eorrect.

§. Allright, now let me ask you ahoul the box the money ggesA
into in the musie box, ie that a metallic box, or some other kind?
ME., TUHKNELR:

Allright, Mr. Adame, please don't put the answers in the
witress' mouth, let him tell you what kind of a box it was, nov
you tell him.

BY MK, ADAMS:

. Now, Mr. Stricklend, snswer my question, please, siy.

L. Let's see, sir, you asked me what kind of a box it was
in the music box that took care of the money deposited im 1t¥

. Yes, sir - in substance, thai was 1t.

A. Well, sir, I believe that was & canvas type bag, not a
box.

. Allvight, sir, when you went to the Fool Hoom on the
merning of June &, 1961, and found the place had been broken
into, did you see the canvas bag that come outl of the rusic box
anywhere around?

A. Yes, sir, 1 believe s0.

{. Where do you recall having seen it?

A..It was either on the floor, or ou one of the Popl Tables,
I can't say positively which one it was, 1t has been so long.

¢. It was somewhere in the vieinity of the machine¥

A, YTes, sir.
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Q. Do vou know how much money was in the Cigarette Machine?

A. No, sir, I don't know how much was in there, I have noc
way of knowing.

¢. Do you have any way of knowing how wmuch money was in the
music box?

A. Ko, Blr,
§. Do you know of your own knowledge that there was sone
mopey in ihere, in Woth machines?

A. Yes, sir.

¢. These wachines had not been emptied, or the money ve-
moved from them in sometime?
Mi. TUMNER:

If the Court please, I ohject to the State Attorney leading
the witness,.
THE COURT:

Objection sustained.
BY ME. ADAMS:

¢.When do you recall the momey having been taken out ol the
machines prior to this date, June 3, 19617
A. The Gentleman that serviced the Cigarette Machine always

come on Thursday, I belleve, and he would have emptied the Cigar-
ettec Machive on Thursday before. Now, the "Juke" Box, he would
usually come on Friday aftermoon, or maybe Saturday, or in case
I might need some change I would call him and he would coue any
time I called him.

§. You know there was some uounsy in both of these machines?

A, Yes, sir.



§¢. My. Strickland, did you sell wine in your place of busi-
ness at thai tiae?

i, Yee, slir.

¢. bid you sell beer?

A, Yes, sir,

. Did you make an Inventory, oy were you able to make an
Inventory, to tell whether or not any beer or wine had heen Te-
moved from the place?

A. There had been some rewoved, but I couldn't tell you
the specific amocund.

MR, TURNEHR:

I wove to strike the answer as noiu regponsive.
THE COURT:

He asked him if any had been moved.

MR, TURNER:

No, sir, your Homor, 1 beg your pardon, he asked him 1if he
made an Inventory to deteraine whether any was npigeing or not.
BY Mil. ADAMS: |

G. My. Strickland, will you snswer this question, 'ves, oy
no,' was there an Inventory made?

A. Yes,

¢. From that Inventory did you learn thai some beer apd
wine hed been removedy

A, Yes, sir.

¢, The night before you were enlled down to examine this
place that hed been broken imto, who closed the place that night¥®

A, I did.



. This window that you have already testified about being
broken out was it broken out when you closed up ithe night %eﬁere?.

A. Ko, eir.

§. This door in the back that vou have testified was open
when you arrived at your nlace of business, was 1t open whean you
left that estsblishment the might before?

A, No, sir,

§. Are vou in position to tesivify that they were boih
closed when you left there thel mignu?

A, Yes, Bir,

¢. The plece we have been talking aboui, Mr. Strickiand,
Bay Harbor, Florida, is that im Bay Couniy, Florida¥?

A, Yes, 8ir.

¢. &nd the date we have been talking about is June 3, 18617

A. Yes, sir.

. Now, after you discovered the place anad been broken into
did you see Mr. uideon, the Uefendant?

4. I aidn't discover the place had been broken into, myseif,
I was not the first ome to discover the place had been biovken
into, I was called at home and asked to come down there, after it
wes discovered by someone else. |

. Did you see Mr. Gideon that morming?

A. I saw him later that morning, yes, sir/

. Where wag he when you saw him%

A. Over in town ~ in Panawma City proper.

ME., ADAMS:

You may inquire, mr. Turner.
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CHOB: EIAMINATION

BY MH., TURNER:

. Mr. Striekland, who owned that building, that you wers
operating your business in?

A. Arthur Widineamp.

§. Who owned the eguipmeni?

A. Arihur Widincanyp.

€. Are you related to Arthur Widincamp?

. He's my Father-in-law.
4. four FPather-in-law?

. Yes, gir.,

A
§
A
€, How much rent did you pay?
A. Seveniy-five ($75.00) a month.
Q. Did you pay it by check or cash?
A, Usually by cash.

Q. And your Father-in-law alsoc ha&s & bunch of rental houses
doesn't he, or did at thal time?

A, Yes, sir.

¢. Let's see, now, 1 believe you married Mr. Widincaump's
daughter Betiy?

A, That's right.

¢. Who operated the Bay Harbor Pool Roowm before you?

A, | believe it was closed up -~ I believe I opened it un.

§. Uldn't Arthur operate that place belore you 4id?

A, Possilbly so - 1 was in South Florida and I doun't think
this has ever been Giscussed between he and I,

§. Were you poi in partmership with him over there?
¥ g b
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Q.

I'm sorry, Mr, Turner, I didn't gquite understand you.

Weren't you and Arthur in partnership over there in that

businees, the operation of the Bay Harbor Fool Roon?

A,
C.
operate

A.

- .

.

. - 3

A B 4D o o L o S o

he?

Q.

His and my name were both on the License.
That's what I'm telking about. Did Arthur Widincamp

thet business”

Wus he there sometimes?
Yes, sir.
iMdn't he operate it gometizes®

Poeasionally.

. Gccasionally?

Yes, sir,
When you were not there?
Yes,sir.

Even this UDefendant, Gideon, operated ii{ sometimes didu't

Well, occesionally.

And your and kie names were both on that License?

Yee, sir.

How was the rent paid, was 1t paild out of the proceeds

gut of that busitess?

And what was done witk the rest of it, the money, I mean?

Was it divided between you and Archur?

MR, ADAME:

iz

the Court plesse, I object, he's just trying to putl

words in the witness' mouth.
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THE COURY:

He's talliing about leading the witness.

Mii., TUKNEH:

Well, 1f this "aint" cross examination "there ‘'aint' a

eow in Texas."
THE CoUnT:

He's tmliking sbowit leadiny
objecuing to.

MR, TUBRNLH:

the witness,

chat is whai he's

I c¢an lesd him, vour YHonor, omn c¢russ examination I can

lead him "s1l over the l1o0t."

MH, ADakS

You can't put worde in his mouth, though, Mr. Turmer.

TURNEL -
I sure can., Does

THE COUHT:

the Court want

to

Proceed with your examination.

ME, TURNER:

Thank vou, sir.

BY MR, TUHNWEH:

G. What was done with the rest of that

Arthur divide it up?
AL

wae done with 1t?

1o me.,

It ecome to you?

Yeg, sir,

hear sowme law on that?

money, did vou and



.

¢. bid you bave eny Articles of Farimership between you
and Arthur?

A. No, sir.

¢. Who paid the for the lights?

A, I dig,

¢. Aud whe paid for the water?

A, 1 did.

(. How much money was In thet Cigerette Machine?
A, I don'l know.

G. Mr. Strickland, sitting up there where you are cn the
witness stand, can you tell me the number on my Driver's License
here in my wellet? (Hclding wallet up for witness to look at.)
MR, HARRIS:

Mow, if the Court please, thie is rediculous, the State
cbhjects to it.

THE COUKT:

Objection sustained.
MK, TURNER:

Now, just & minute, 1f the Court plesse. ¥hat is he oh-~
jecting to?

Tido CUULT:

The guestion.
MR, HARHIS:

The question you asked this witness 1s wholly unrelated
to this trisl. Whether or not he can read the number on Mr.

Turner's bDriver's License has nothing to do with this trial.
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ME. TURNER:

Allrigh%,’%ir, 1'11 conmect it if you will give me am on-
pOrtunity, I was 'cut down' there before I got started.
THE COURT:

Go ahead, we'll see if you are going to connect it to anv-—
thing.
BY MB., TUHNEWX:

Q. Now, Mr, Strickland, ean you tell me whether there was
any money 1n that Cigarette Machine or not?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. €an vou swear that?

A. Yes, six.

Q. How can you swear that?

A. I bought a pack of Cigerettes out of it, out of that
machine.

| Q. When did you do that?

On Saturdey.

Just before you closed the rlace up¥

. Yeas.

Now, who made the Inventory of the beer?

And the wine?

-

S0rry, sir.

»

I 2aid gho made the imveniory of the wine?

> O P O > O P O >

I diaq,

Q. And now, tell me how maeny beers were missing, can you

do that?¥
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A, No, gir, I can't,.

§. ¥hy can't you do that, Mr, S8trickland?

A, Well, I can't give you the specific amount?

€. Well, why ean't you give us the speecific amouni?

A, I just can'i give vou the svecific amount.

Q. Surely, there must be some reason why you can'?s give ihe
dJury the apecific amounti. Uid vou inow the amouns you hadl on
hand?

A. Not exacily.

. Well, who made the inventorvy What kind of an inven-
tory was this vou made¥

A, Well, let's say that ......

¢. No, no, let's not say anything. What was it?

A, Wall, if I had four cases of beer and scld one case.....
MR. TURNEL:

If the Court please, 1 move to strike his answer, it's not
responsive to the guestion.

THE COUHT:

Let him asnswer the g¢gueetion, he hasn't finished 1t verl,
you stopped him,
ME, TURNER:

He sturted out on a hypothetieal answer, your Honor, I
didn't ask him for that kind of snswer, what I'w trying to
find out is what Zind of an invertory was this he made.

THE COUUT:

Well, let him answer it in his way, lei him proceed,
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MR. TURNER:

Alivight, sic,
THE COURT:

Go shend and snswer the question, if vou can, nlease,
WITHESS

A. (Continuing answer) ...... And I returned the nex’
morning snd only found two and one-half cases, I knew - well,
it would be obviocus that a helf-case was gone.
BY MR, TURNEHK:

G. Ave voun telling us thet that ig the kind of inventory
you took?

A, Yes.

Q. And you're velling us thet you lmew how much was in
that box the night before?

A. Boughly.

€. Well, 'how rough is vroughly?!

A. To the extent that 1 ewxplained there justl now.

¢. Well, how close doee that get us, are you within e
half-case asecurate, or & case accurate, or 8ix cans accurate,
or what? Just how accurate are you omn that?

A. I couldn't tell you the specific amcunt that was missing.

Q. Well, within what lee-way can you tell us?

A, Well, I can't say syeeificaiiyﬁ

§. Could vou sive, or take, tem cans, oy how accurate can
you be?

A. I would say, maybe, a halfi-case.

¢. How many cans are in a casev
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A, Twenty-four.

¢. What would vou say wag missing out of the beer hox now,
taking all of that into consideration, how many cans wers nigs-
ing would vou gay? Uive us your 'best sducated guess.'

A, I would ssy 2 half-cass.

¢. Twelve cans?

A, Yes, giv,

G, Allright, now tell this Jury how much wine was wissing’

A, 1 believe there waz four hoittles of wine.

¢. Now, what leads you to helieve that?

A, Well, I knew how much wine there was there the night
before¥

¢. How much? Did vou know exactly how many bottles of
wine were there the night before?

A, Yes, T did.

G. Well, fine., How pany were missing?

bk

A. Four nottles, 1 believe. That has been a long time back
and Y don't remeumber it 28 well as I did at first, of course, but
I believe there were four botiles of wine missing.

Q. When was the last time you talked with Henry Ceok about
this case, Mr. Strickland?

A. Paréonf.

Q. When was the last time you talked with Menry Cock about
this case?

4. 1 sew Henrv Cook Friday afternoorn, 1 believe.

G. Did vou talk to him aboul this case?

A, Yes, sir,



¢. Did you and Avchur Widincamp ever Hegister your names,
Bay Harbor Vool Hoom, down here with the Clerk of the Circuit
Court, Mr. Collins?

MR, BARKIS: |

If it ylease the Court, the Staie objecis to that, 1i's
totally unconnected with this trial.
THE COURT:

I'w going to let hinm answer it.
ME, HARRIS:

The State cbjects to it, your Honer, it's ncot in cross
with anything brought out on divect examineticn, and it has noth-
ing to do wiih this case, it's terrible.

THE COURT:

The cbjection will be ovev-ruled, I'm going to let him
answer the question.
BY ME. TURNER:

Q. Did you &all Register ihe nase of the businese down here
with Mr, Cellins, in the Clerk's 0ffice?

4. I dién'v.

¢. Do you know whether Arthur Widincan; d4id or noct?

A. No, I don'x.

MR. TURNER:

I have nothing furither.
THE COURT:

Does the State hsve anyvthing furither for this witness?
MH, ADAMS:

Yes, your Honor, we do.
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BY MR. ADAMS:

¢. Mr. Strickland, on the evening before this Pool Hooms
was broken into, did you elearn up the place before you clesed
up and left?

A. No, sir - I usually swept up in the morning, before I
openied up - prior to opening I'd do my cleaning.

Q. Did you leave any beer cans on your ococunter when you
left that night?

A. I don't remember whether there were any left on the
counter that mnight or net.

Q. Do you remember whether there were any on the counter
the next morning?

A. Yes, sir, there was some beer caus on the counter that
morning when I went in, I remember that.

Q. But you don't remember whether they were left on there
that night?

A, No, sir, I don't.

ME. ADAMS:
That's all.
ME. TURNER:

No further questions.

THE COURT:
You may step down, Mr. Strickland.

This witness then left the stand.

THE COURT:

Gentlemen, it's lunch time. B8hall we take a reoess at

this time?
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ME, ADAMS:

I think so, your Homor, ii's almost twelve o'eclock.
MRE. TURNER:

I suggest we do that, your Honor.
THE COURT:

Court will be recessed until one-fifteen, this afternocon.

Gentlemen of the Jury, we are going to take a recess for
lunch at this time, and you may go and get your lunch, the same
instruotions I have given you in the past will be in effect;
you will not have to stay together during the noon recess, but
you are not to discuss this oase among yourselves or with anyone
else, if anyone approaches you and tries to talk to you about
this case tell them you are serving on the Jury and you can't
discuss it, and if they persist in talking to you, you are au-
thorized to take them into custody and brinmg them before the
Court when you come back, or report it to the Court; you are not
to form any opinion in this case until you have heard all of the
evidence and the Charge of the Court. Just go wherever you want
to go for lunch, and be back here at one~-fifteen this aftermoon.

Court now stands recessed until ome-fifteen this aftermoon.

One-fifteen, p. m.

Court called to Order.

Judge McCrary on the Beneh.

Counsel for the State, the Defendant and his Counsel all
seated at the Counsel Table.

The Jury in the Jury Box.
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THE COURT:

Do you Gentlemen coneede the presence of the Jury?
ME. ADAMS:

The State does, your Honor.
MR. TURNER:

The Defendent does, your Honor.
THE COQURT:

You may proceed.
MR. TURNER:

If the Court please, may we have Mr., Strickland return
to the witness -tanﬁ; I need to ask him A couple more guestions
on Be-Cross, then, I'11 be through with him.

THE COURT: |
Yes, you may have him come back.

Call Mr. Ira Strickland, Jr., please, Mr. 8Bheriff.

Ira Strickland, Jr., re-called to the witness stand, testi-

fied further, as follows:

RE-CHROSS EXAMINATION
BY MR. TURNER:

Q. Mr, Strickland, I just want to ask you & couple of
questions about the building over there, the Bay Harbor Pool
Room, at the time of this breaking and entering, in June, 61,
is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. The building was approximately what size, sixty-by-
twenty-five, something like that, it was an oblong building
wasn't 1t?
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A. Yes, sir, the building is oblong, I wouldn't be able
to say the size of the bullding, I know it was longer than 1t
was wide. |

G¢. And as you go ip the front door the Pool Tebles were
in the center of the bullding, right?

A. That's right.

¢. Par to the left in the front was the Cigaretie Machine?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Now, where was the partition in that building?

A. When I first opened there, there was a partition in
there, but it has been so far back I don't remember whether
that partition was in there or not.

Q. In '61, June 8rd? That was two years a&ago.

A. I would be afraid to say.

Q. There was a partition in there?

A. At one time, yes, sir.

Q. And what did it partition off, what was in the baok room?

A. Mostly, it was just & Stock Area back there for various
odds and ends, parts, Pool Tables, and 'what have you.'

Was there a door in the partition?

. Yes, sir.

Was it a solid partition?

. Across the back at that time.

And you would have to go through a door to get in there?

. Yes, sir.

Q. And from the front, to go out the back door, you would

have to ge through that partitioned area?
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¢. Was thet door usually kept copen, or was it closed?

A. It was kept open.

¢. It was kepti open?

A. There was no swinging door there, there was a place
that was cut out for a door.

Q. Now, was that in fromt, or in line, ¢f or with the
back door, or where was it?%

L. It wae not in lipe with the back door, it would be
kinder off-center to the back docor.

Q. Your besti memory onm Jume 3, 1961, you don't know whether
that partition was there c¢r not?

A. No, sir, I dor't - I know that thing was taken out, but
1 don't remember whether it was taken out prior to that date or
afterward.

Q. Was the paritiom from the floor to the eceiling?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. A solid wall?

A. Yes, sir,
MR. TURNER:

That's all I wanted to ask him.
THE COURT:

Would the State like to ask this witness any questions?

MB. ADAMS:
The State has no further questions for this witness, your
Honor. |
THE COURT:
You may step down, Mr. Strickland.
This witness then left the stand.
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Duell Pitts, called as a witnese on behalf of the State,
being first duly swern by the Clerk of this Court, testified

as follows:

DIRECT EXAMIRATION
BY ME. BARRIS:
. 8tate your name, please.
. Duell Pitts,.

. Mr, Pitts, where are you mnow employed?

- O o

. City of Panama City Polioce Department.

Q. Were you employed by the City of Panama City Police
Department on June 3, 19617

A. Yes, 1 was,

Q. In what part of the Police Department are you employed?

A. The Detective Department.

¢. On June 3, 1961, in your capacity as a Folice Officer,
did you investigaie a breaking and entering in the Bay Harbor
Pool Room?

A. Yoes, sir,

Q. Do you recall who was there when you arrived on the
scene?

A. There was Officer Berryhill and Henry Cook, they are
the two that 1 recall being there.

Q. Did you make an examination of the building there?

A, Yes, I did.

Q. DPid you make a determination as to how entrance was
gained?

A, Yes, I did - it was through a window on the Northwest
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gide of the building.

Q. Mow, what do you mean by 'on the Northwest side of
the building?'

A. It was on the North side, on the West end of the
building.

G. Would that be to the rear of the building, the side of
the building, or where?

A. To the rear of 1it.

Q. Tell the Jury what you found there.

A. The window had heen broken, the glass broken out,
reached in and unlatched.

Q. Was the window casing up or down when you got there?

A. It wae down.

Q. What else did you find there?

A. The window had been broken out and most of the glass
had fell cn the inside of the building.

Q. Did you go into the building?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. What did you find then?

A. I found the "Juke" Box had been broken into and also
the Cigarette Machine had beéen broken into.

¢. The Cigarette Machine, did you determine how it was
broken into?

A. The front part of it, i%'sibuilt in two sections,

and aboui hal? of it comes off of the machine, and it had been

pulied off, forced off.
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§. Did you find that part of the machine?

A. Yes, sir, it was in the Pool Roon.

¢. Where, in the Pool Hoom was 117

A. I don't remember where it was.

¢. DMd you find any other items having to do with the
Cigarette Machine?

A. There wag a coip box from the Cigaretie Machinme and the
bag from the “"Juke® Box laying on the Fool Table when I got there.

Q. The bag from the "Juke" Hox and the coin box from the
Cigarette Machine were om the ool Table when you got there?

A. Yes, sir.

¢. They were just laying on the table as if they had been
thrown there, or laid there en the Posl Table?

A. They were lying there on the Pocl Table, I ecculdn't tell
by looking at them whether they were laid there or thrown there,
they were just there.

MR, HARRIS:

You may inquire, Mr, Turner.

CROSE EXAMINATION
BY MR. TURNER:
Q. Mr. Pitts, was Henry Cock under arrest at that time?
A. No, he wasn't. _
Q. What d4id he eay about the breaking and enterimg, Cook?
A. Well, Officer Berryhill told me that he had witnessed
the man being in the building, and when I talked to him about 4t

he told me that he had seen Clarence Gideon iz there.
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¢. Officer Berryhill told you that Cook had seen someone
in the building?
A, That's right.
. bid he say who?
. Mr, Berryhill?
. Yes,
. Yes, he told me who it was.
He told you it was Gideon?

. Yes, sir.

O O L oo P o

How did you get notified to go over there, by Telephone,
Radio, or how?

A. I don't remember whether I was working thai might or
whether I was at home, I believe I was on duty at that time, I'm
not sure.

Q. Did you see either Mr. Gideon or Irene Rhodes there at
that time?

A. Mr. Gideon wasnu't there - et that time?

Q. Yes.

A. Mr. Gideon wasn't there - and I don't remember seeing
Mrs. Hhodes there.

Q. Did you later telk to this Ire Strikland, Jr.?

A. Yes. He was notified that the place had been broken in-
to and he eame right on down there.

Q. What did he tell you was missing out of the place when

he got down there?
A. Money from the Cigarette Machine and the "Juke" Box,
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some "Cokes® and some wine.

Q. What ebout beer?

A. And some beer.

¢. How much beer did he say was missing?

A, Can I lock at this folder I have here?

Q. Yes, if it's your record that you wrote down om the spot
at the scene. Is that what 1t is?

A. Yes, eir, it'e my rotes that I made there when I was
investigating the breaking and entering.

Q. Allright, you may look at it to refresh your meégry.

A. (Reading from paper removed from folder) - Approxi-
mately sixty dollars ($60.00) from the "Juke" Box, approximately
five dollars ($5.00) from the Clgarette Eaehine, twelve (12)
bottles of "Cokes", twelve (12) cans of beer and four-fifths of
wine.

Q. Four-fifths or four pints?

A. Pour-fifths.

Q. Pour-f1fths of wine?

A. Twelve bottles of "Cokes," twelve cans of beer - ap-
proximetely five dollers ($5.00) from the Cigarette Machine, apyoxi-
mately sixty dollars ($60.00) from the "Juke" Box.

Q. Did you later thai morning come in contact with Clarence
Earl Gideon?

A, Yean, 1 did.

Q. Where did you come in contact with him?

h. At the Bayshore Bar.
¢

0, Here, in Panams City?
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. Yer, Bir.

£

. Did you arvest him?

. Yes, I did.

. Did ke have on his person any wine?
. Ho, he didn't,

. Did he have any "Cokes?"

No.

. Did he have any beer?

No.

-

O oo oo oo >

How much money did he have on hia?

A. He had twenty-five deollars and twenty-eight cents
($25.28), in querters, nickels, dimes and there was a few pen-
nies in 1t, I believse.

Q. '"Twenty-five-twenty-eight?'

A. Yes, sir.

Q. All in change?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Now, in inveetigating thet building over there, did you
determine whether or not there wae & partition in that building?

A. What kind of partition are you referrirn™g to?

Q. Wag the building just 'wall-to-wall' or was there some
partitions in the bullding?

A. I believe, at that time, there was & partition between
the back room and the front part of the building, the Pool Eoom.

€. Dc vou have any independent recollection of that, that
partition being there?

A, I don't remember exactly whether it was or not.
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€. You've got a slight suspicion that it was there?

A. It peems like at one time there was a partition in tﬁere,'
'and, I believe, at that time, there was.

¢. You say most of the glasse from the broken window was on
the inaide of the building?

A, Yes, sir,

¢. The back te that buillding, on the rear, faces the alley,

is that right?

A, Yes,

Q. Was MH, Gideon intoxicated when you arrested him?
A, Yes, he was, he had been drinking quite & biv.

. Was he ahle to stand on his feet® |

A. He could stand on hig feet, but not toc steady.

Q. If he attempted any locometion, walking, or standing on
his feet, was there evidence that he was wunder the influence of

intoxiocating beverages?

A. Yes.

¢. Did he talk ccherently?

A. What?

§. Did he talk coherently, imtelligently?

A. Reasonably soc, yes.

(. Did he say he had broken into the Bay Harbor Fool Room?
A. Ne, he did not,

¢. Did ke say he did mot?

A. He said he didn't know anything about it.

¢. He didn't kunow enything about 1t7%

A. That is exactly what he said, 'that he didn't know
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anytihing about it.!

Q. Do you know how he got to Les Gilbert's Bar, the
Bayshore Bar?®

A, On & Taxi-Cab - he'vas supposed to have come to town
that way, I don't knmow whether he got to the Bayshore Bar that
way or mot,

Q. Didn't you investigate 1t7

A, Yes.

Q. You talked with the ceb driver didm't you?
A, Yes.

Q. Wes that Preston Bray?

A. Who?

Q. Preston Bray - wasn't he the cab driver that brought

Mr. Gideon to town?

A. Yes.

Q. What time was it when you saw Mi. Gideon at the Bayshore
- Bar?

A. Around ten, or ten~thirty, I believse.

. Was that in the morning or at night?

A. In the morning.
ME. TURNER:

That's all I have. You may inguire.

RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR, HAHRRIS:
Q. This twenty-five dollars and twenty-eight cents ($25.28)
you found on Mr. Gideon, which was in quarters, nickels, dimes

and a few pennies, was that all the money he had on him?
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A, That's ail.
@ . Be had no bills?
A. I don't remember any.
ME. HARRIS:
That's all.
THE COURT:
Anvthing further for this witness, Mr. Turner?

ME. TURMNEH:

No, vour Henor, we have nothing further for Mr.

THE COURT:
You may step down, Mr, Fitts.

This witness then left the stand.

Fitss.

Preston Bray, called as a witness on behalf of the 3tate,

being first duly sworn by the Clerk of thie Court, testified

as follown:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, HARRIS:
. 8tate your name, please.
. Preston Bray.
. Mr. Bray, how o0ld are you?

., Thirty-elight.

. Yes, sir.

pid you know him on the 3rd day of June, 19617

Q
A
Q
A
§. Do vou kxmow Clavence Earl Gideon?
A
Q
A, Yes.
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Q.

Do you know where the Bay Harbor Pool Room was on June

3, 19617

Pool

A'
Q.
A.

o B O o o

. Yen,gir.

Did vou see Mr, Gideon there?
Not at the Pool Room, no, sir.

Did you see him on that day?

. Yes, sir.
. What is your voeation, My, Bray?

. My ‘'what?!

Your vocation - what do you do - how do you make a living?
I'm a cab driver.

Were you & cab driver in June, 1986817

. Yes.

. Where did you see kr. Gideon on that day?

At the Telephone Booth, in Parker, at his instructions.

. Now how far is that Telephone Booth from Bay Harbor

About a half-block.

Do you reecall what psrt of the day you saw Mr. Gideon?

No, sir, I don't, it was in the morning pari of the day.
It was what?

In the morning is all 1 know,

Bo vou know that it was befove six o'elock in the morning?
No, sir, I don't kneow.

You have ne idea what time it was?

It was the early part of the morning, I kmow that.



€. Wae it daylight or dark?
A. Davlight.

Q. Did Mr. Gideon get in your cab there at the Telephone

A. Yes, sir,
. Where did you take Mr. Gideom to%
A. Town,

. You mean to Panama City proper?

. That's right.

. And where did he get out of your eab?

¢
A
Q
A. Fourth and Harrison.
Q. Pourth and Harrison?
A. Yes, sir,
Q. When you pieked Mr. Gideon up there in Bay Harbor, Mr.
Bray, did you see anyome els¢ there that you knew, on the street?

A. No, sir, 1 don't remember seeing anybody.

Q. Do you know Henry Cook?

A. Yes, sir, I know Henry Cook.

Q. Did you see him there?

A. No, sir.

¢. How about Irene Rhodes, did you see her?

A. I seen Irene Rhodes sitting on the porch at Prescott's
Apartments.

Q. What was she doing?

. 8itting in a cheir, that's all I seen her doing.

A
Q. Did you see anybody else there that you knew?
A

. No, sir, I didn't.
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Do you know Velva Egtelle Morris?

A

Yes, sir, I know her.

§. Did you see her there anywhere?

A, No, sir, I didn't.

¢. Mr. Gideon paid you your fare when you put him out did
he?

A. Yes, sir.

¢. bo you recall how much he gave you, and what denowination
it was?®

A. Yee, s8ilr - he gave me gilx qguarters.

¢. He geve vou 8ix guarters?

A. Yes, gir.
Mii. HARRIS:

You way inguire, Mr. Turner.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY ME. TURNEK:

Q. Mr. Bray, did Mr. Gideon give you six, or seven, quarters?

A. He give me six, or seven - I belleve it was six - I'm

pretty sure it was six.

¢. Do you remember having a conversation with me recently?
A, Yes, sir.
Q. About this case?

A. Yes, sir.

¢. Do you remember me asking you how much he paid you and
you paid seven quarters?
A, Yes, sir, I did.

Q. Do you remember me advising you at that time that you
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had previously selid six quarters, and you sald you were certain

it was seven?

A. Ne, sir, 1 remember you telling me that I said it was

half-dollars, not quarters, and I told you that if I said that

I was mistaken, for 1t was Quartiers.

§. You got six quarters mow - is that your best recollection

today?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. What was his condition as to sobriety?

A. A8 to 'whet?'

Q. Was he drunmk or sober?

A. He was sober.

Q. Could he walk allright?

A. Yes, sir, he walked allright.

Q. He told ycu where he wanted to go whem he got in your

ecab, right%

A. He told me he wanted to go to town.

Q. And you brought him over to Fourth and Harv son?

A. When we goi to Fourth and Harrison he says 'I'11 get

out here.'

Q. And you stopped

A. That's right.

. pid he have

. No, 8ir, he

Q
A
Q. Did he have
A. No, sir, he
Q

. Did he have

any
aid
Bny
did

any

and he got out?

packages with him¥
not.

wine with hiwm?
not.

beer with bhim?
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A. No, sir, he didn't,
Q. Did he have any Cooca—-Colas with him?
A. Ko, sir, he did not.
Q. Did bhis pockets bulge?
A. No, sir, they did not,
Q. Which way did he go when you let him out of the cab?
A. I didan't notice, to tell you the truth.
MR, TURNER:

That's all. You may inguire, Mr, Hamis,

RE~-DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, HARRIS:

Q. Mr. Brey, you stated that bis pockets didn'ti bulge,
that he didn't have any beer, didn't have any Coca-Qolas, he
didn't have scy wine. Now, are you sayinmg that he did not have
these things, or that you did not see them?

A. I answered the question like he asked me.

¢. He asked you if his poekets hulged,

A. His peckets ddn't bulge.

Q. You kmow his pockets didn't bulge?

A. I know they didn't bulge.

Q. How dc you know they didn't bulge?

A. Because he had on a vegular sport coat and it hung on
him just like it would on you, or anvbody else, it was per-
fectly straight.

Q. He did have on & sport goat?

A. Yes, sir,

Q. How long have you kmown Mr. Gideon?
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A. Beveral yvears,
Q. You couldn't see his pants pockets could youn, you were
referring io his coat pockets?
A. I couldn't see his pantis pookets, ne, sir.
MR. HAREKIS3:
That's all.
MR. TURKEK:
I have nothing further.
THE COURT:
You may step down, My, Bray.

Phis witness then left the stand.

MR, HARRIS:
The 5tate resis.
MR. TURNEE:
May we have about ten minutes, your Homor?

THE COURT:

Yes. We will take z ten-minutes recess. Will that bhe
enough time, ten minutes?

MR. TURNEE:

I believe so, vour Hemor. Then, I have a Motiom to make
eut of the hearing of the Jury.
THE COURT:

Would you like to make your Motion now?

ME., TURNEER;

No, sir, not at this moment, please, I would like to ‘get
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my brain collecied' before I make my Motion,
THE COURY.

Allright, let's take s ten-minutes recess.

Gentlemen of the Jury, we are going to take a tem-minutes
recess; the same instructions I have heretofore given you are
8till in effect.

The Court will be at ease.

At the end of tLhe ten-minuies recess:
Court called to Qrder.
Judge MceCrary on the Bench.
The Jury in the Jury Box.
Counsel for the State and the Defendant aﬁé his Couusel
all seated at the Counsel Table.
THE COURT:
Do you Gentlieumen concede the presence of the Jury?
ME., ADAME:
The State doss, your Homor.
MR, TURNEK:
The pefendant does, your Homer.
THE COURT:
You may proceed.
MR, TUBRNER:
I am ready te present my Motion mow, if the Court please.
THE COURT:
Pake ithe Jury out, Mr. Sheriff,

At this point the Jury retired from the Courti Room.
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THE CCUHT:

You may proceed, Mr. Turaer.
ME. TURNER:

The Defendant now moves the Court to direct & verdiet of
not guilty in bis favor, on the following grounds:

The State, in this case, is relying wpon Circumstantial
evidence to prove its charge of breakimg and entering wiih in-
tent to coumit a misdemeanor.

If I understand the law correctly, the rule of law to be
applied to such cases is that the eirocumstances, takea as a
whole must be of & conclusive nature, eshowing, on the whole,
that the Defendant and no other person committed the crime.

The circumstances relied upen by the State are:

1. The witness, Cook, testified that he saw the Defendant
inside the building, but the witness testified that he wasn'tl
doing anything anvthing when he saw him,

2. The witness, Cook, tesiified he saw this Defendant
leave the building through a back door,

3. The witness,Cook, testified that he saw his pocketis
bulged, when he called a cab.

4. The witness, Cook, testified he saw him with & bottle
of wine.

By the testimony of the Arresiing Of{icer the Defendant
wae apprehended with tweniy-five dollars snd tweniy-eighi cents
($25.28) in pennies and other coins on his person; that the
music box and the Cigareite Machine had been riflied.

Now, it's & rule of law that the circumsiances musti be
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conclusive. Am I correct teo say - -~ - I wouldn't want to mis-
gtate it - - - If circumstances on the whole must be of a econ-
elusive nature, pointing to the unerring guilt of this Defendant
and no other person, them, I thinmk the State has failed to prove
its charge.

Now, they have gotl some stireng suspicionrs here, but 1 sub-
mit te the Court that that building eculd have been broken into
before. But assuming the evidence produced here by the State is
true, the most it shows 1s that the Defendant was inside that
building, that his roekets bulged, and he had some chenge in his
pockets when he was arrested, after he was seen in the place
where the machines had been brokem intc and rifled.

The evidence further shows that the machines were supposed
to have yielded a total of fifty-five dollars (§35.00) in cash,
four-fifths of wine, twelve cans of beer and twelve bottles of
Coca~Cola.

Now, teking the evidence &t its worst, it shows the Defend-
ant inside the building, doing mothimg. The orly evidence the
State has, and this is responmsible, good testimony, given by the
Arresting Officer, the man who apprehended the Defendant, ies-
tified that when he arrested him he had on his personm twenty-
five dollers and twentv-eighi cents ($25.28), in silver, mo bills,
just quarters, nickels, dimes and a few pennies.

Conversant with the rule that a person found in possession
of recently stolen goods can be oconviected of the theft, but the
goods have to be identified, and of course, there is no serial

number on coins, so how can it be said that these coine found
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found on the Defendant at the time of his arrest point uner-
ringly to the guilt of his taking the money out of those ma-
chines.

At this stage of the game, there 18 an open gquestion, and
the ciroumstances on the whole do not preve comelusivelv, nor
are they of a coneclusive nature, that this Defendani, and ne
other person, committed thie crime, and the Siate haz failed 1o
make out ites charge, and T am respectfully urgirg the Court te
direot a verdict of not guilty in favor of the Defendant.

THE COURT:

The Motion will be deunied.

Bring the Jury back, Mr. SBheriff.

At this point the Jury returmed te the Court Room and re
sumed their places in the Jury Box.

THE COURT:

The Jury is in the Box, Gentlemen, you may proceed.
MR. TURNKER:

Call My. Henderson, Sheriff.

At this polint the befendant, to sustain his plea of not
gullty to the charge conteined in the Information on file in

this case, offered the following testimony.

J. D, Henderson, called as & witness on behelf of the Pe-
fendanit, being firgt duly sworn by the Clerk of this Court,

testified as follows:

~102~-



DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. TURNER:

¢. Btate your name and where you live, please, sir,

A. J. D. Hencerson, I live at 3810 Baldwin Road, Hiland
City, or Hiland Park, it's ealI%EIther one,

¢. Mr. Hendersoun, do you operate any busziness?

A. I operste Henderson's frocery & Market, at 109 Craft
Avenue, in Bay Harbor.

Q. Both of those places afe in Bay County, Flerida, are
they not, ¥r., Henderson?

A. Oh, yes, they are.

Q. Will you, for the benefit of this Jury, Mr. Henderson,
tell them where that place is located ir relation co the Bay
Harbor Pool Roon?

A. Well, 'Birs,' PFirst Court and Craft Avenue come to a
polnt approximately one hundred feet from Everett Avenue, which
18 the street on which the Pool Keow i lecuted, approximately
one-half block down, if it was diagonelly scroes from 1v, I
would say three hundred feet, approximately.

Q. Is there an allev hetween Everett AV&ﬂﬂe.&ﬁé vour place
of business?

A. Yes, sir, there is, it should be Olive Avenue, hut I
believe they have closed it wp.

Q. That alley would rum in a generally HNorth-8outh direction,
is that right?

A. Paralel - North and South - it should be right in front

of my store end right back of the Bay Harboer Pecl Room.
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G. It goes ou down baek of the Pool Room?

A, Yese, sir,

ey

§. How fTar back¥

A. It goes on over to Cherry Street, and that's a dea’d end,
International Paper Company's propserviy is bevond that.

Q. Now, Mr, Hendevson, did you operaie thal! business, in
that same location, in June of 16617

A. Yes, sir, I have been there five years, going on six
years.

Q. Do you have & Public Telephone Booth ocutszide vour build-
ing there at your place?

A. Yes, sii.

Q. Do you know Henry Cook?

A. Yes, s8ir, I know hiu.

Q. Did you know him in the year 1861, in June, 1961, to be
specific?

A. Yes, s8iv.

Q. Do you kumow Clarence Earl Gideon?

A. Yes, sir, I imow Mr. Gideon, too.

Q. Did you kmow hin in June oi 19617

A, Yes,sir, 1 did.

¢. bid you have cccasion to see either one of those men on
the mornilng of June 3, 18617

A. I saw Henry Cook, at approximately, Qr’aetwe&ﬁ eight and
nine o'clock.

Q. Is that the morming thet it is sald the Bay Harbor Pool

Room had beern broken into?
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A. Yes, sir, that was the talk at that time, I didn't know
anything about it, but I was told that it was brokem into.

Q. Did you see Mr. Cook, Mr. Henry Cook, that merning?

A. ] 4id see him that mormning, yes, sir.

Q. Where 4id you see him%

A. He came into my place of business, my store, between
eight and nine o'clock that morning, at that time he was trading
some.

¢. How far did he live from your store?

A. Approximately four blooks - three blocks down, and one
over, on East Avenue - yes, approximately four blocks, that is
West three blocks and one block South from my store.

Q. Did you have any conversation that morning with him
about the alleged breaking amd entering of the Bay Harbor Pool
Room?

A. Well, he had one with me.

Q. Just tell the Jury what he said to you.

A. He sald that someone had broke in that bar, the Bay
Harbor Bar, and he thought he knew who it was, and I says 'well,
why don't you tell the law,' and he said the law had picked him
up for questioning.

Q. The law had picked who up?

A. Henry Cook. Now, that's the story he told me, that the
law had piecked hiﬁ up for questioning, and 1 says 'what did you
tell them,' and he says 'l told them I went to Apalachicola,or
some place down there, to an all-night dance'and two boys brought

him back and dropped him off at Riley Hill's Store.
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Q. Will vou explain te the Jury where Riley Hill's Store is?%

A. Riley Hill's Store is direetly ecross from the Bay Har-
bor Pool Hoom, 'oblong, like,' it would ke EBast-Southeast, about
fifty to seventy-five feet - there's an old Service Station, it's
abandoned now, down on the corner of Cherry Street and Everett
Avenue, right by Johnnie Ward's Barber Shop, he said they dropped
him there at five o'cloek, or approximately that, in the mormimg,
and he walked by the Poocl Room and he said he thought he knew who
wes in there, and I says 'who was ii,' and he says 'I'm not sure
who 1t was,' and I says 'well, I wouldn't talk too muech about it
if I waen't sure who it was, unless I knew what I was saying I'd
just keep quiet,' .

Q. Was this after he had seen the Officers and talked to
them?

A. He said he had seen the Officers, I don't know whether
he had or not, that was somewhere around eight or nine o'clock -
it could have been eight, eight-thirty, or nine, I didn't check
the time then, I really didn't think mueh about it at the time.

Q. Allright, that's e¢lose enough - what else did he say?

A. He said ' it looked like,' those were his words, 'it
looked like Mr. Gideon,' he said 'to his opinion, it locked like
him,' I says 'what was he doing,' he said he didn't know. 1 was
kinder busy, as I usually am on Sunday morning, and the conver-
sation just kinder 'wondered off,' there were other people in
the store and I just kinder igmored him at the time, because 1

had no interest in it whatsoever so I let it drop.
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ME. TURNER:

You may inquire, Mr, Adams.

CROSS EXAMINATION
BY MH. HARRIS:

Q. Was anyone else present when that conversation was had
between you and Mr. Cook?

A. Yes, sir, there quite a few people present, I have tried
to remember, Mr. Harris, some of the people who were there at
the time, but I'm 8o busy there on Sunday morning, that is the
only store in that neighborhood open on Sunday morning end lots
of people come in as scon as it's opemed, and they just keep
coming in, for that roasenyit'- hard toc earry on a conversation
and wait on customers, and a bunch of people standing around
drinking cold drinks, they were not in the oconversation, no, they
were not, but they were present in the store when we had the oon-
versation.

G¢. This conversation took place on Bunday morning?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you remember what the date of the month was?

A, No, sir, I deﬂ$%7¥hat the date was, I know it was the
morning after the robbery, because they were all talking about
it there afterward. My store, Mr. Harris, is just e 'gathering
place' for people on Sunday morning from all around that ocom-
munity, I knew everybody in the oommunity, I've been there a
long time snd just about everyone in that community trades with
me; and, too, I have been working at the mill for thirteen years

and they all know me.
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G. But you ocan't remember the names of any of these people
you've known &ll these years that were in the store there while
this conversation between you and Mr. Cook was gqing on?

A. Ro, sir; because, as I said before, I took no particular
interest in it at the time. I told him if he thought he knew
that he should notify the Police.

¢. You took no parcvicular interest im the conversation or
the robbery?

A. In what he was saying. I didn't bring up the conver-
sation with him, he brought it up with me.

Q. How long have you known Mr. Gideon?

A. About three and one-half or four years, I've been seeing
hiz around the store, he traded with me a lot and was in and out
of the store all along, practically every day and sometimes sev-
eral times a day.

Q. Now, have you ever had any trouble with Henry Cook?

A. No, sir, not in particular.

¢. Has he paid you for the groceries he got from you?

A. Are you interested in whether he paid me or are you just
asking?

¢. I'm interested, I want to know.

A. Well, he owes me a grocery bill mow, but he did pay for
a while. I think the bill now pending is forty-ume dollars and
‘something,' 1'm fiximng to turm it over to the Spall Claims
Court.

¢. How lomg has he beer owing you that bill?

A. Approximately & year. He traded with me all the time,
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and paild me good up until about & year ago.

¢. Now who was the first person you told about this econ-
versation you had with Mr. Cook?

A. I have no way of telling, Mr., Harris, it was discussed
and talked about frequently, especially when it first happened,
I would have no way of knowing who was the first person I dis-
ocussed it with.

Q. When was the first time you discussed it with Mr. Turner®

A. One day lasi week - Mr. Turner came over to the store and
asked me if I knew anything about it and I told him exzactly what
I told you.

Q. Have you ever disocussed it with Mr. Gideon?

A. No, eir, I have never talked to Mr. Gideon about it
whatsoever,

Q. You knew that Mr. Gideon was placed under arrest for
this charge?

A. I did later in the day, I heard it, but I did not know
it at that time.

Q. Did you ever go and volunteer any information to the
Police Department, or anyone else?

A. I did not, Mr. Cook told me that he gave the Police
that information, picked him up for questioning, that was his
story that he told me. I do not volunteer information unless I
kuow definitely what I am talkimg about, I'm mot golng to volun-
tarily cause anyone trouble, unless I definitely know what I'm
talking about and I know it's something that needs my informa-

tion to assiet in setting something right that needs attentiom.

~109-



G. Now, are you telling this Jury teday that you have used
the exact wordse of Mr. Cook?

A. Those are his exact words, those are the words he used
in the conversation, and he was doing the talking, mostly; as I
said before, I did noi encourage the conversation, I never
brought up the subject, he told me, and I mostly listened at him
talk. »

¢. Then, you are telling this Jury that these are the exaét
words that Mr, Cook told you?

A. 'Word for word,' 'that he thought he knew who it was in
there,' and I said to him 'if you are positive why don't you go
to the Polliee,' he said the Police had already pioked him up and
questioned him,

Q. Picked who up and questioned him?

A. Henry Cook.

Q. They had picked up Henry Cook, or had picked up Clarence
Earl Gideon?

A. Henry Cook; he told me they had picked him wp and ques-
tioned him in the matter.

Q. How many people were in your store that morning, Mr.
Henderson?

A. 1 don't know exactly who was in there, Mr. Harris,
there were three or four, or more, people in there at the time
and it's pretty hard to remember these little details in some-~
thing that was just merely routine, 'every-day' occurances, just
people in the store making purchases and you're not in conver-

gation with them, more thanr to serve them.
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Q. Were you waiting on customers at the same time you
were talking to Henry Cook?

A. Yes, sir, I was, but Henry was talking to me, specifi-
cally to me; you see, Mr. Harris, I have a small ecounter, and
I.stand right behind it, the Cash Register sets right there,
and Henry was leaning on the Cash Hegister talking to me, he
placed himself there where he could talk to me.

Q. Do you do a lot of 'charge business' there?

A, Quite a bit.

Q. Some of those customers who were in the store at the
same time Henry Cook was in there, were they '‘'charge oustomers?'

A. No, lir;‘i don't bellieve so - it's very seldom I sell
much 'stuff on ocredit on Sunday, the 'charge customers' usually
get their groceries on Friday and Saturday, when they pay me
for what they've bought the week before, some of them get their
week's supply en Thursday.

Q. Well, now you can'i remember the names of any of these
other people that were in there, can you remember whether they
were men, women, both, or what?

A. There eould have been both men and women, and perhaps
children, too, we have a lot of childrem that come in ﬁhe store.

Q. In fact, Mr. Henderson, they call that "Incubator Ave-
nue” I believe.

A. That would be & good name for that sireet, there's so

many ehildren on it, and they're 'inm and out' there all day long

every day.
MR, HARRIS:

That's all.
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EE-DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MK. TURNERE:

. You are here today under Subpoena aren't you, Mr,
Henderson?

A. 1 am, yes, sir.

¢. You didn't just voluntarily come ir here tc testify
did you?

A. Ko, 8ir, 1 did not, I came on a "Special Invitation of
the Court,™ I assure you.
ME. TUBNER:

That's all.

You may come down, Mr. Henderson.

This witness then left the stand.

Clerence Earl Gideon, the Defendant, called as a witness
on his own behalf, being first duly sworn by the Clerk of this

Court, testified as follows:

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. TURNER:

¢. You are Clarence Earl Gideon?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Mr. Gideon, I'm going to ask you to keep your volce up
so that you can be heard by every member of this Jury, if Mr.
Hallman, the Gentlemen down bere on the end of this Jury Panel,
holds his hand up you will kmow he is mot hearing you and you

gpeak louder. Will you do that?
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Q.
the Bay
A,
G.

living,

Room?

-2 B - B .- B

Yes, sir.

Mr. Gideon, on June 8, 1981, did you break and enter
Harbor Poecl Room?

¥o, sir,

On that morning what were you doing, where wore you

on thet morning, June 3, 1861°%

. I lived in the Bay Harbor Hotel.

. And where is that in relation tc the Bay Harbor FPool

A.

Direotly across the street from it.

Did you leave the hotel that morning?

. Yes, sir.

. Approximately what time did you leave?
. It was early in the mormning, it was before seven o'elock.
. Did you look at the time as you went out?
. No, sir, I didn't.

. Where did you go?

I went aoross the street, into the alley, went through

the alley down to Henderson's Store, to use the Telephone down

there.

Q. Who did you eall?

A. I called me a cab.

§. What ocab came to you?

A. I ealled Preston Bray, because he's a friend of mine.

Q. Where did you go to on the eab?

A. I had him take me to town.
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Q.
A.

Where did you go to 'over town?!

Well, primarily, I went to the Trade Winds, to get a

bottle of beer.

Q.
A.

Q.

Trede Wind?
Yes.

What eondition were you in as to sobriety, were you

drinking, or drumk, or sober?

A.

£

- T S -~ I

£

A.

T had been drinking lots, but I wasn't drunk.

. You were 'just drinking?'

. Yes, sir.

What was the purpose of coming over town?

. To get me ‘another drink.'

Now, d4id you have any money on your person &t that time?
Yes, sir, I had quite & bit of money.
Where did you get the money from¢?

Well, I worked when I could, I gambled when I ocould.

. What type of gambling did you engage in?

Around there, around the Pool Hall and places like that,

I played Rummy.

Q.

¢in Rummy?

Ne, just straight Rusmmy.

Do you have any explanation of the change in your pocket?
I had lots of change - I always carried lcie of change.
Por these gambling games you engaged in?%

Yes, sir. In a poker game you've 'gotta' have change.
Have youv ever gamhled with Henry Cook?

Yes, sir. At one time I run a game in this Pool Hall -

~114-



I have gamb d with all these boys.

(. What about Mr. Strickland, did you ever gamble with him?

A. I have gambled with him, yes, sir.

¢. What about Mr. Widincamp, the owner of the place?

A. T used to run a game for him, too, but it was in another
house, not in that place.

¢. Did you have anything about your person that morning,
except your momey, whemn you went over town?

A. That's all I had, just money, I didn't have nothing
else, I had no drink, I went to town to get a drink,

¢. Did you have any beer, wine or whiskey about your persom?

A. No, sir. I don't drink wine, if I had a bottle of wine
I throwed it away.

Q. Did you take any wine, beer or Coca-Colas out of the
Bay Harbor Pool Room on that morning?

A. No, I didn't.

G. How long have you kmown Henry Cook?

A. I've known bim - 'knowed of him' and known hin person-
ally ever since I've been in this town, I guess.

G. How long have you been here in Bay County?

A. I imagine five years now, counting from the time when
I first came here.

¢. Did you see Irene Rhodes on this morming of June 3rd,
1961, when it is said Bay Harbor Pool BRoom was broken into?

A. Yes, sir, she was sitting on the porch at the hotel, I
alwaye weved at her when I wenti by her.

(. Where didé you stay between the Telephone oall and the
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cab's arrival?

A. I stayed right there at the Telephone Booth.

Q. All the time?

A. Yes, sir, I stood right there and waited, after I made
the eall, until the cab got there, I told him where to plek me wup,
and he come right on in just a few minutes, I didn't have to wait
long, Prestion was on the cnb stand and he come right down and got m

Q. During the time you were ir town, from the time wou left
here, left the Telephone Booth and e¢ome to town, until the time
when you were arrested what did you purchase?

A. I didrn't purchase nothing but something to drink.

Q. Well, that's what I'm talking about. How much did you
purchase to drink?

A. Well, Y don't know exactly, I probably drank four or
five beers, and I bought & half-pint of Vodka.

. Where did you get the half-pint of Vodm 7

A. At the Bay Bhore Bar.

Q. Now, that's just diagonally across the street from the
Trade Winds 1s it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What do you say to this charge that you broke and
entered the Poel Hall?

A. I didn't understand you.

Q. What do you say to this charge that you broke and en-
tered the Bay Harber Pool Room on June 3, 19617

A. I'm not guilty of it, I know nothing about it.
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ME. TURNER:

You may inguire, Mr. Harria.

CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MR. HARRIS:

¢. You say you left your hotel that moraing before seven
o'cloock?

A. Yes, sir.

@. Do you know what time Mr. Henderson cpened his grocery
gtore?

A. I don't know the exact time he opens his store, he wasn't
open that morning, I know that.

Q. His store was not open when you left there in that eab?

A. No, sir, it wasn't.

Q. You said you ocalled Preston Bray?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. You talked to Preston Bray himself when you called the
cab?

A. I did, yes. That'e the cab service I always used, there's
only two cabs up there.

Q. Where were you working at this time?

A. Vhere was I working?

§. Yes. Where were you employed on June 2, 19617

A. I wasn't employed no place.

¢. When was the last time you were Qmplayeﬁ prior to
June 3, 1961%

A. About & month before that I worked for The Delta Con-

struction Company, in Baton Rouge, Louisiana.
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Did you do that work here?
. No, s#ir, it was on & Drag Line, "S8pud Barge."
. Where were you working for them?

In Louisiana.

O P O P O

How long did vow work for them out there?

A. When ] was forced out of the hospital over there, I went
to work and worked three months over there for them, then the
Health Depariment found out I was workimg for them over there and
put a complaint in against me and got me fired off the job, be~
cause I was a cook on there.

. The Health Department?

. Yes,

Then, you worked for this outfit three months?

. I worked for them three months, yes, sir.

-2 A -

When did you go to work for them?

A. T went to work the latter part of August, or the first
part of September.

Q. In 198607

A. Yes, s8ir.

¢. And you worked for them three months, and was out of
work for one month before you come over here to this hotel?

A. I was not out of work sll the time.

Q. Did you work all the time?

A. No, I didn't work 211 the time, I worked at odd jobs
around this town.

Q. pidn't you just tell me, Hr. Gideon, that the last job

you had was with a construetion ecompany, in Louisiana?®
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A. The last regular job I had was there, yes.

€. And when I asked you when wae the last time you worked
prior to thie date June 3rd and you told me a month, didu't you?

A. The last actual work I done I painted the Bay Harbor
Hotel there, inside.

¢. When d4id you do that?

A. I done it at various times, 'cff-and-on.!

Q. You mean you painted the whole hotel at various times?

A. The biggest part of 1t, ves.

Q. How many times did you paint it?%

A. How many times did I paint 1t?

GC. Yes,

A. I only painted it cnce, and I didn't paint the complete
building, either.

Q. That building is owned by Mrs. Morris?

A. I think she owns it, yes.

Q. You worked for her, then?

A. Yes,

Q. Angd you painted it one time?

A. I didn't say I painted it one time, I said I worked 1in
there; I painted all the rooms upstaire and part of the down-
stairs.

Q. When 4id you do that?

A. '0ff-and-on' for a menth or two.

Q. Well, aid you dc that during, or juet before this rob-
bery there in the Bay Herbor Pool Room?

A. No - just before the robhery of the Bay Harbor Pecol ReOm
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I wag arrested on & complaint up here, I was arrvested in my bed
up there, mnd charged with vagrancy, and held for investigation
for robbing the Bay Harbor Bar, directly across the sireet from
there, and I was held up there for eighteen days at that time.
"OK," Mr., Gideon. You were not emploved on June 3, 19617

I was not emploved - I was gambling.

Q
A
Q. I beg your pardon.
A. I was geabling.
Q Gambling?
A. Yes, sir - actually, I did work for Mr. Striekland - I
run a Poker game in the Bay Harbor Pool Hall and that's the rea-
son we were at fault.

Q. Were you doing that on June 3, 19617

A. No, T wasn't doing that on June 3rd.

Q. When was the lzet time you had a game in the Pool Room?

A. The last time I had a game in there, I think, was the
Saturday before they had thie 'big sheke-up' in this town.

¢. '"mig shake-up?'

a A. Yes.

Q. What 'big shake-up?'

A. When the State Beverage Department come in here and ar-
rested fortv-two people, something like that.

Q. What did My. Strickland pay you for the game, rununing
the gambling game?

A. ¥het did he pay me?

. Yes.

A. Whatever we made, we 'split it.?
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. How d¢ you make money out of that game?

Q
A. How did we make money?
¢. "Uh-hu," how did you make eny money?
A. By gambling.
G. Were you gambling against everybedy else, whose money
did@ vou 'split' with Mr. Strickland?
‘A. Whatever we won.
Who won?
Me .
You?

Yes, #e.

.
A
G.
A.
. Whatever you won?
A. Yes.
Q. Suppose you lost money, what happened then?
A. I just lost momey, then.
Q. Mr. Gideon, tell me when was the last time vou had a job
prior to June 3, 19617

A. The last time I had anything that was ekin to a regularr
job was ip January, when I was out at Tyndall Field with an Air
Poroe Sergeant by the name of 8trickland when they were bulilding
a club out there, he put me to work out there, he was in Private
gervice out there for the Service Men, and I was arresived on
fnvestigation.

Q. Now, when was this?

A. In Janaéry.

¢. And when did you work for him?

A

T didn't sctually work, he was goling tc put me to wori,
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they was building & e¢lub out there, and he had already hired

we to go to work as soon as the club was completed, and just
before it was completed I was arrested for investigation and

held up for eighteen days, and shortly after that, then, I was
arrested and charged with this breaking and enterimg at the Bay
Harbor Pool Room - I don't have to itell you, I'm sure, kr. Harris,
where I have been since thet time, since you were ithe oune who pul
me where I've been all this time.

Q. Allright, Mr. gldeon, when was the last iime, prio: o
June 3, 196', that you had a regular job that you were paid for
your employment?

A. Sometime in January, 1960C.

Q. Where?

A. Delte Constructiorn Company, Beton Houge, Loulislana.

G. Thaet was in January, 1960% I thoughi you suid that was
in August.

A. I told you I went to work the latter part of August, or
the first part of September, 1960, and I worked until December,
or January, and I wae 'let out' on aceount of my health, I won't
say definitely whether it wes Jemuary or December, but I think
it was Jenuasry, and my reason for thinking that 1=z because I
came back here shortly after that and I came back here in Janu-
ary, I'm pretty sure of that.

Q. Were you invelved in & Peoker game on the night of June
2, 19617

A. No - the lest Poker geame I was in befcre that was on

the sunday before, out at Southport.
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Q. That was & week before then?

A. I don't think it vas a week.

Q. Do you remember the day of the week the Bay Harbor FPool
Koom wae broken into?

A. 1 certainly do.

Q. What day was that?

A. Saturday morming.

¢. B3asurday morning?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Saturday morning or Saturday night?

A. Ssturday morming, according to all the testimony.

§. And it's your testimony that you had not been involved
in any kind of gambling for some five days before that, eince
Sundsy®

A. I played Rummy all the time, any kind.

¢. Had you played Rummy, then, that night?

A. No, not on that night, I was too busy drinking.

G. You mean the night before?¥

A. Yes.

§. Were you drunk?

A. No, I wesn'ti drunk, but I was itoo busy drinkimg to play
Rummy, I know I didn't play nmo Rummy that night.

. How wmuch money did you have on you when you were arrested?

A. How much mopney did I have?

€. Yeg, sir.

A. The man said ] had twenty-five dollars ($25.00).

. Was all the money you had on you in coins?
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. That's what he sald,
. Well, is that true?
. I suppose ii was true, he was under oath when he said 1%.
why do you, or why did you, carry so much money in coins?

. How's that, now?

P~ A - . e

. Why were you carrying tweaty-five dollars ($25.00) im
colns?
A. 1 make a practice of carrying change.
¢. Twenty-five dollars ($25.00) worth?
A. I've had as high as a hundred dollars ($100.00) worth.
Q. Change?
A. Yes, sir, change.
Q. Carry it sround im your pocket?
A. Have you ever run a Poker game?
MR. TURNER:
pon't argue with Counsel, Mr. Gideon, just answer his ques-
tions.
BY MR. HARRIS:

¢. And you walk around with a hundred dollers in change

in your pocketis?

A. 1've had as high as six hundred dollars ($600.00) in
change.

Q. In your pocket?

A. Not in my pockel, mo.

Q. But you have had a hundred dcllars worth of it in your
pocket?

A. I have had e hundred dollars in change in my pocket, yes.
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¢. And earry it arouud for a couple of days at the (ime?

A. Yes, sir; 1 sure wouldn't leave it in a sleeping room
in the Bay Harbor Hotel.

. My, Gideomn, have you ever been convicted, or plead
guilty to a felony?

A. Yes, sir,

¢. How many times?

A, Five times, counting thkis one.

. Mr. Gideon, when Mr. Bray picked you ur in Bay Harbor
and drove you to FPanama City did you make any statement to hins
in regards to youreelf?

A. I don't know thai I understand your questiion, Hr. Harris,
would you mind repeating the question, please, sir?

Q. Listen closely, now, Mr. Gideon, this is whatv I said:
'"When lMr. Iray pieked you up in Bay Harber and drove you to
Panama City, did vou make any statement to him in regards to
yourself?'

A. I don't remember making any azate&aﬁzAta him at all.

¢. Allright, let me ask you this: Did you tell Mr. Bray
this, 'if anvhody asks you if you have seen me, tell them that
you haven't seen me. ?'

A. No, I don't remember making any statement like thatl.

§. Do vou deny that you told him thal?

L. Yes, I deny 1%L,

. Now, @14 I understand you te say you purchesed you &
half-pint of Vedka st the Bay Ehore fary

A. T wag drinking tt when the man arrested me.
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¢. In the Bay Shore Bar?

A. Yes, #ir.

¢. Mr. Gideon, this Rooming House, where you stayed, is
directly mcross the sireet from the Bay Harbor Bar?

A. It's almost directly across the street from the Bay
Harbor Bar, yes; it's & little “Catiy-cormered,” bui moi much,
it's almost siraight across the street.

Q. Now, Henderson's Grocery, just where is it located from
the Bay liarbor Hotel where you stayed?

A. Vell, you oan come out of the Bay Harbor Hotel amnd go
directly across the street, to the right of the Bay Harbor Bar,
right straight through that ?ﬂtb*'&y there, the alley, go down
the alley to the end and there's Henderson's Store, you're at
Henderson's Store, across the alley there.

Q. You can also go to Henderson's Store by coming oul of the
Pay Harbor Bar and walking down the street to the cormer, turn
right and go direcily to Hemdersou's Store, can'i you?

A. 1 always weni the other way, on account of il's beiier
walking thatl way.

§¢. Better walkimg?

A. Yes.

¢. In what respect?

A. You've goi a bad sidewalk ada diteh the other way.

¢. You've got a bad sidewalk and ditches?

A. Yes.
Q. Are you referrimg to that paved sireet where you turn

to ihe yight?
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Yes, sir. There's a drop-off on the sidewalk there.

That street is the one that goes in to the paper mill?

. Everetts Avenue, yes, sir.

It's paved isn’'t 197

It's black-topped, paved, or some cther sort ef hard

surfacing, I don't know just what it is.

G.
A.
Q.

This alley vou referred to, is it paved?
No, it's not paved.

How muech did Mrs. Morris pay you for paintinmg all the

rooms upsiairs in the hotel?

A. 8he took it out in rent.

§¢. well, if she look it out im rent, how much rent did she
take out?

A. 1 guess approximately six months, about that.

Q. 8ix months rent, approximately?

A. Tes, sir.

Q. Approximaiely six months, or six monihs?

A. Bix months - about six womnths.

Q. How much was your reni per month?

A. I{ was not very much.

Q. How much is ‘noi very much,' Mr. Gideon?

A. It would run iwenity~four te twenty~five dollars & month,

spomething lige that.

.

Now, did it rum twenty-four dollare, twenty-five dol-

lars, or just how many dolliars?

A

it was six dollars ($6.00) a week, and it depended on

how the month gome in, how many days in the month, ete., all
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months didn't yun the same, some months it was more aand some
months less ihan twenty-four dollars.

¢. Sowe months less than tweniy-four dollars, is that what
you saidy

A. 1 meant iweniy-five dollars, less than tweniy-five, it
wae aivays wwehiy-~-four doilars, four weeks, av iz dollars &
week.

k. Did you paint any part of the hotel other than upstaiis?

. Yes, slv, I painied part of the dowustairs.

. You palnied part of the downasiairs?

&

A

L

A. Yes, pir,

¢. Allright, how muck did she pay you for that?

A. I just told you what she paid me, Mr. Harrig.

¢. Well, then, for all the paintimg you did 2t the hetsl
you had six menths rent paid?

A, Approximetely.

€. At six dollars per week?

A. Yes gir.

. Didn't you &lso tell me that yom run & game for Mr.
Widincamp when he Rad the Pool Room, the Hay Harbor Poel Hoom?

A. T did - but I didn’'t run 1t in the Pool Hoom, 1 run it
down there in one of his houses.

¢. Bid you ever work for Mr, Pitvtman, other than running
this game vou referred to?

A. Hr. pPitiman?

§. Mr. sirickland, that'e what I intended to say.

A, ¥r. giriokland -~ that's all the work I evey did for him.
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¢. That's the only work you ever did for Mr. Strieckland?

A. That's right.

€. Had you earmed any money, anywhere, ir. Gideon, in the
month prior Lo Juse 3, 1961, at anyihing other than gasbling?

A. I don't konow, I can't say positively about any dates.

§. Why can't you say aboul any specific dates?

A. Well, there's nov tou mun)y daves ihar have any signifi-
cance to maike me remember.

Q. Well, cer >ou rawe =ze one specific deie that is sig-
nificant enough in your wmipd and mezsyy for you to remember?

A. New Yepy's might, 1561.

. YWhet 1s sc signifieaﬁé abogul that nighs?

A. 1 went ¢ the ¥. €. 0. Club and won $160.00. I remem-
ber that night.

G. %eli, for the month of May, through June 3§, 1961, did
you earn any money other than gaubling?

A. They had we in jail up here, 1 think, the biggesi pari
of that month.

Q. They had you in Jjail in May, 10617

A. I think so, i1 was sowewhere slong in there,

Q. You don't know when you were in jaily

A. T don'i vecmll the dates, Bo, sil.

¢. Do you know when you got out of jail prior to June
3, 18617

A. Net the date I got oul, Bo, 8ir, it wasn'i (00 many
days before they locked me up again and charged we with this

erime, which I knew noihing abouv, and 1 81ill don'i kmow
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why they charged me with that breasking

and entering when I knew
absolutely nothing about it.
§. You didn't know anything st all sbout it, eh?
A. I sure didn't,
MR, HARRIS:
Thati's all.
MB, TURMNLR:
The Defendant vests, yon: Honor,
You may cowe down, Mr. Gldeon.

Thls witness then left the siand.

MiR. HARRIS:

The State has & short rebuttal, 1f the Court please.
THE COURT:

Allright, vou may proceed.

Preston Bray, re-called as a witness on behalf of the Stats,
having been duly sworn by the Clerk of thie Court, testified as
follows:

DINECT BXAMINATION
BY ME, HAHEIE:

Q. You are the same Preston Bray who tesiified in this cese
earlier today?

A. Yes, sir, I an.

¢. Mr. #ray, on the morning of June 3, 1861, when Ziavence
Earl Gideon called yéa to go to Bav Farbor end plck him and

bring him to Faname City, did he make any statement to vou?
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A. Yes, s8ir, he did.

§. What did he say to you?

A. He sald 'if snyome asks you where you leti me off at,
you don't know, you haven't seen me.'

¢. 'If anyone asks you where you let me off, you don't
knew, vyou haven'i seen me?'

A. That's vight, that's what he said.

Q. bid he say anything furiher to you in that regard?

A. No, sir.
MR, HARRIS:

That's all. Jou ma)y inguire, Mr. Turner.

CROSE EXAMINATION
BY MR, TURNER:

¢. Mr, Bray, had you ridden Mr. Gideon to Paname City be-
fore that morning?

A. Not that moerning, no, sir.

G. What I mean is, had youw carried him to Panama City numer-
ous times before that daie, not before, on that same worning?

A. Oh, yes, eir, I had ecarried him tc lown many times.

¢. Had be ever made that sase statement to you ail cther
times when you let him out of your cab?

A. Yes, sirx.

¢. He had tcld you that same thing before?

A. Yes, he had.

¢. Do you know why?

A. I don't know exactly, im fact, I don't kmow, but I

figured it was on accownt of his wife, they had had lots of
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trouble, and they weve separated at that time,
ME, TURNER:
Phei'’s 811,

HE~DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MK, HARKIS:
G¢. But you do kpow that he told you they on that moining?
L. Yes, slr.
MR, HARKIS:
Fhat's all.
Anything further frem either side?
MR. TURNEE:

The Defendant has nothimg further, your Homor.
MR, HARRIS:

Nothing furthe:r for ithe Htele.

The State restis.

MR, TURNEL:

Your Heney, we renew our Metviom - the stave has aanounced
they have eclosed - we renew the Motlon made by the Defendanti at
the ena of the state’'s case.

THE COUET:

On the saue grounds?
ME, TUHNEER:

Yes, siv,

THE COURT:

Phe Motion wili ve denled.
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THE COURT:
Thevre has been some dlecussion, 'off-ihe-ryecord,’ about
Special Chavges. Does either the State oo nefendant have any

gpecial Charges they would Ziye to discuss

Yes, sir, the Jefendant has some. Are [ou golng to adjourn
t¢ Chambers to discuss Loge?
THE COURT:

Yes, I had piazned wo, (¥ you had something to wanted Lo
discuss.
MR, TUHNL:

%ell, we have some Speolal Charges we would like to digcuss .
TRE COURT:

Gentlewsn of the Jury, we are going to adjourn to Chambers
to discues the Sseciml Charges in this case, at this time. 1t
probably will tale us about tifteen or twenty mimutes, you may
may walk around he:s in the Court Hoom, or even go downsialrs if
you like, bui the same instructions I heve given you in the past
are still in effecti, you don't hmave 1o stay together, but just
don't let anybody talk to yeu about this cage and don’'t discuss
i1t among vourgclves until you hear the Charge of the Court.

The Couri will stand recegsed for fifteen minutes.

At this point hie Hemer, Judge MeCrary, Coumsel for the
State, the pefendani and his Counsel, and the Court Rejorier re-
tired to Chambers io discuss the special Charges to the Juiy ié-

quested by the pefendant.
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At the end of ihe fifteen minules recess:

Court called 0 Order.

Judge MoCrary on ithe Bench.

The Jusy in the Jury Box.

Counsel for Lhe =iamte, iLhe Deiendant sud hie Counsel, all
seated at the Counsvi Tauvle.
THE COUR

Do you Gentliemen concede the presence of the Juiy?
MR, ADAMS:

The State does, yous Hoenur.
MR. TURNEH:

Phe Defendsni does, your Houer.
THE COURT:

Allright, you amay proceed.

At this poini the caseé was argued te the Jury.
Argument epened by My. @riffith.

Followed by Myr. Turner.

Closed by Mr, Harrvis.

After which came:
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. CHARGE OF THE COURT

Gentlemen of Lhe Juiy, 1 want you wo congider the importe-
ance of your funcilon as Jurors in this case, you &re Lhe sgole
judges o©f the facts and youl decision on ilhese facis is finml,

of grave importance in the proger funciion

thus your position i

o

of the Court in the sduinistration of justice; your primasy deo-

o

gire must be Lo isach & io and justi comeclusica ealy fiow facts
end circumstances in evidence. 4 consideration of facts and
circumeiances in evideunce excludes syapaibhy oi prejucice ln i1each-
ing & eonclusion, it includes, however, careful appilicaiion bj
you of all the law econtained in ithese iasiructions; thus, Li
would be your ¢uty to congider these imsiructions aftier you re-
tire and use then ss & guide in your deliberations. Let your
judgwent reflect u deliberate judgment, free from any influensce,
other than the levw smnéd 21l the faots and circumsiances in evie
dence.

You, Gentiemen of the Jury, are the sole judges of the
eredibility of the witnesses and the weight to be given thelr
testimony. Ip determining the weight the tesiimons of & wiiness

18 entitled to receive you should lake inic copsideration their

r eopduct and

i
sl
Ps

cutte of this case, if any, the

et

interest in the ve

B

b

demeanor vhile testiifvipg, their appasent fairmess, or bias, or

&

relationshi, (o the parties, if any such appears, Thely o,por-
geeing or

tunity f@fﬁﬁﬁ@@éng the things about which they have testified,

their ability to remember and relale accurately the ceoecurances

referred +c in their tesiimemy, ithe extent to which they are



gorroborated, if st &ll, by cirecumsianges of the tesiimony of
eredible wiinesses, t?? ressonablensess or uunreasonableness of
their stetementls a§é§a§§er evidence, facis and clirousnstances
proved tendinmg to corroborate, or centradiet, such witnesses
insofar as there mey be any conflict im the evidence, i1 is
your duty to vecoucile ihese comflicte if you cam, I you can-
mot, then, you a&re ito determine which is true and which is uun-
true and give such weight to the sestimony of any witmess as in
your judgment you saculd we under all tiue clrcumstances in the
ease, hecause it is your Guty (0 say wiv is and who is notl apeak-
ing the truth in this case, and base you: verdict golely uapoan
that testimony that you belleve to be iiue.

Now, the Qefeﬁﬁ&nt in this case, as in every crimipal cass,
is presumed tﬁ??ﬁﬁﬁ@&ﬁ% of any offense until ithe Siate has by
compeient evidence shown his guili t¢ the exclusion of and be-
yond a reasonsble doubi; befoie this presuspition of inmocence
ltcves'éka pefendant every material allegation of the Informa-
tien must be proven by the evidence to ine exclusion of and
beyond & ressonable doubl, &nd tikis presusption of ipuocence
accompanies end abides witk ihe Defendsnt as 1o each and every
materisl sllegation contained in the Iuformalion through ea¢h
stage of this irial until 1t has beepn su mei and gvercome LY
the evidence t¢ ithe vxclusion of and beyond & veasonable doubl.
The burden of such proef is on ithe Staie of Florida end it is
to the evidence introduced upos bhe tilal, aud wo it alone,

that vou ere to look for smen pyooi; if any one of ihe material
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allegations contained in the Informatien is not provenm Lo the
éxclusion of and bevond a reasopable doubt youw must give the
pefendant the benefii of such a doubt and acguit him; but i7
you find from the evidence beyoand and to the exclusion of

every reasonable doubi thai the Hefendant is gullty of the crime
eharged in the Inf@ruation then you should figé the Defendant
guilty of such offense.

I mentioned to voun reasomable doubi: I will noW define to
you what & reasonable doubt is, within the meaninpg of the law of
the State of Flerida: As Jurors, charged with the solelmn duty
at et hand, you must carefully and conscientiocusly consider, oom—
pere and weigh all of the testimony that you have heard here to-
day; if, after doing thie, you think that your understandlng,
your judgmenti and your reason are well satisfied and convineed
by it to the extent of having a full, firm and abiding con-
vietion to & moral certainty that this charge is true, then, the
charge has been proven to ithe exclusion of and beyond a reason-
able doubt, and it is your dety toc conviet. A doubt whieh is a
mere possible doubt, or a speculative, imaginative, or forced
doubt is not a2 reascunable doubt, but an unresasonsble doubt, and
for the reason that everything relating to human affairs is open
to doubts of this character, such & doubt eughtl motl io comtrol
or influenee ihe Jury to retuin & verdict of acquitisl, where
they bave an zbiding conviction of the truth of the charge as I
have staited herein. On ithe other hand, if, after carefully

considering, comparing and weighing all the testimony there is
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not an abiding conviction Lo a reasonable and moral certaimtiy
of the truth of the charge; or, if havimg a comvietion, it is
yet one which is not abiding, or gtable, but wavers and vaseil-
lates, or is one which ihere is not a moral cextainty, them,
the truth of the charge 1s not made out beyond a reascnable
doubt and there must be an acguittal because ithe doubt is rea-
sonable; a doubt whleh is not suggested by, or does nor arise
from the testimony, or from the like of testimony, 1s not a
reasonable doubt and should never ke considered, or, in other
words, If the testimony preduces a conviction of the character
which I have indicated as seing sufficlent to prove a charge to
the exclusion of a reascnable doubt the Jury has no right to go
coutside of the testimony for doubtis of any kind.

When circumstantial evidence is relied upon in a criminal
case, the circumstances when takem together, must be sf a con-
clusive nature and tendency, leading on the whole to a reason-
able and moral certainty the accused and no one else commitied
the oriminal offense. It is8 not sufficiemt that the facts
oreate a atrong probability of and be consistent with guilt, it
must be inconsistent with ilanocencs,

The Court charges you ihat under the laws of this 3tale a
pDefendant may hecome a witnsss and testify in his own behalf,
and in comsiderstion of ths testimony of such Defendant, the
welght and eredibility which should be given the same, it is
proper for you te take into consideration the interest thai such

pefendant has in the vrial and im its results, and all the cir-
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cumstances by which he is surrounded atl the time he testifies,
glsc the reasonablencss or uareascnableness, probability or
improbebility of what he says, Just as you would the tesiisony
of anyv other witness.

You are instructed ihat the evidence in ihis case as to
the former conviciion eof erims of the accused is npot evidence
of the guilt or inmnecence of the Defendant in this case, and
raigses no inferemce or implication of guilt, buv i to be con-
sidered solely by you &a tc the bearing ii mey have, il any,
upon the credibiliiy of ihe Defendsnl 58 2 wliiness.

You are furihe: instructed that the evidence in ihis caee
a8 to former conviction of erime of a witnesge ie¢ to be ocon-
sidered solely by you as to the bearimg it may heve, 1f any,
upon the credibilicy of the testimony of that witness, and un-
der the laws of the State of Plorida & person eamnct plead
guilty or be comvicted of a felony in the Juvenile Courts of
this Etate.

There are ceriain material elemenis inm this case that Lhe
Stete of Florvida wusi prove:

The firsl oune is ihat the orime, if any, was commiited
here, im Bay County, Florida.

Phe second one is that it was commiited within two yeais
prior to the filimg of thie Information, which was filed on
June 19, 1981,

The third ene is that this Defendent, Clasence L. Gldeon,

is the one that committed the crime.
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Now, to sum that up fer you: If you should find from the
evidenece, thet you have heard from the witnese stand here, that
Clarence Earl Gildeon did, et ary time wiihin two vears prior
to the filing of this Infermatior on June 19, 19281, in the State
of Floride and Couniy of Bey, 4id unliswfully and feloniousliv
break and enter g bullding of sneothev, te wit, the Bav Harbor
Pool Boow, the proverty of YIra Striekland, Jr., the Leasse,
with Intent to ecommii & misdexeanc: witlhin said vuilding, to witi,
Petit Lareeny,kthaﬁ, it would be your duity to return & verdicy
of gullty as charged.

If, however, vou fall to find this state of faocte, oiv if
after a full and falr consideration of all the teéestimeoany in the
oagse yosu have a reasonable doubi as to the guilt of this Defend-
ant, then, it would be vour duty to give the Delendanti the
benefit of that reasonable dAcubi, as defiped to you by the Court,
and retury a verdict of not guilty.

If you should find from the evidence that the vefendant,
Clarence Earl Gideon, is guilty, the form of your verdict would
be 'We, the Jury, find the Defendmnt, (larence Earl Gldeon,
guilty as charged, so sey we all,' and one of your number would
sign that verdiet as Foreman.

If you should find the Defendant, Claremce Earl Gideon,
not guilty, then, the form of your verdiet would be, 'We, the
Jury, find the Defendant, Claremce Harxl Gideon, not gnilty, so
sey we all,' and one of vour mumnber would sign ihat verdiet as

Poreman,
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of te signed by oune of vour number as
Foreman of this Jury,
Any objeciion to the charge as o requesy for

e .
Biil . M

Nome fTos the efendsnt,

THE COURT:

STATE OF
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